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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Feng (appointed on 5 October 2007)

Mr. Wang Ya Qun (resigned on 5 October 2007)
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun (resigned on 5 October 2007)

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Ming (resigned on 5 October 2007)

Mr. Zheng Yi Song (appointed on 5 October 2007)
Mr. Wang Wei Shi (appointed on 5 October 2007)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Zhen Ming
Mr. Ding Gang Yi
Mr. Ku Kin Shing (resigned on 30 April 2008)

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zhang Xing Jiang (resigned on 11 June 2007)

Ms. Wang Ying

Mr. Chen Qian (resigned on 6 March 2007)
Mr. Yang Li (appointed on 11 June 2007)

Mr. Cheng Ping (appointed on 11 June 2007)

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Ding Gang Yi (Chairman)

Mr. Tang Zhen Ming

Mr. Ku Kin Shing (resigned on 30 April 2008)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Liu Feng

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Mr. Lam Chi Tat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Chi Tat

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun (appointed on 5 October 2007)

Mr. Lam Chi Tat

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY
Zhejiang Shiguang (As to PRC Law)

AUDITORS
PKF
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE
No. 65 Siming East Road
Yuyao City

Zhejiang Province

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Units 917-918 9/F

Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE/WEBSITE
www.yidongelec.com

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE
Triroc Abacus Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

GEM STOCK CODE
8249
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NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHmE

T HELE

Chairman, Mr. Liu Feng

| would like to take the opportunity to report last year’s progress
to our shareholders on behalf of the Board of Directors. Effort
invested in the manufacturing of PHS and GSM mobile phones
during the financial year has brought about further growth in
sales, and stabilized our roles and ranking amongst PRC mobile
phone manufacturers. Although the price paid for advancing
through the stage was high, the achievement positions the Group
favorably in relation to further sales and future development.

Besides stabilizing mobile phone businesses, the Group launched
the production of game circuit board and sold the products in
2007, realizing 213% growth for the sector. Also, the Group
had completed the research and development of several new
products, and is in process launching them into the market. New
factory construction completion with its 110 acres space should
cater all impacts emerging in the near future.

The Group had restructuring its management team during the
year, and settled at realistic strategies for entering new era in
2008. Since mobile phones are still our main business, gross
margin reduction in the mobile phone industry has substantial
impacts for the Group. On the other hand, large outlays for
the new factory site had necessitated fund drawing from other
business sectors - burdening the overall cost with financial cost,
and leading to reduced sales consequently.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHmE

Projecting into the future, the Group shall insist the principles [REE20084 @ EEE B EBRKE IS5
of “Stability, Realistic & Result-Orientation” as the enterprise’s zZX"HINERE Hi X BRAE B HHERE
development strategies, ensuring resources flowing to profitability {84l > 2 AFBE AR LB ZEZESE > HFES
businesses through built-up leaning mechanism. We expect that KB T2 EEAEF @ EHRIRESIEHNIZE LR -
this should lead to balanced profitability amongst all business

sectors, and finally reasonable return for our investors.

Lastly, | am thanking to the continued support of our &% KAARBEZLEE ZEPERHtEESZE
shareholders, customers and vendors, and wish every success K@i #: @ MESM BE2EE - FZ)EFN |
for everyone.

Liu Feng 2

Chairman e

Ningbo, The PRC =

30 June 2008 ZEENFANA=TH
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN R DT

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB362,378,000 (2006:
RMB317,274,000), representing an increase of approximately
14.2% over the previous year. The increase in the Group’s
revenue is due to increase in sales of both mobile phones and
controller systems during the year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER N O

The following tables analysed the Group’s turnover by business
activity and geographical region for each of the three years

ended 31 December 2007:

By business activity

Air-conditioner controller systems

Refrigerator controller systems

Smoke extractor controller systems

Fan controller systems

Television controller systems

Manufacture of mobile phone
controller systems and assembly
of mobile phones

Other controller systems

TOTAL

By geographical region

Zhejiang Province
Shandong Province
Guangdong Province
Jiangsu Province
Shanghai

Anhui

Hong Kong

Taiwan

Others*

TOTAL

*

districts.
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Year ended
31 December 2005
HE_TZRF

TZA=ZT-HLEFR
RMB'000 %
ARBTL
20,706 47
23,072 5.1
2,024 0.5
264 0.1
390,568 875
9,568 2.1

Year ended
31 December 2006

HE-ZT A

TZAZT-HLEFR

RMB'000 %
ARBTL

66 0

- 0

131 0

- 0

1,093 0.3

300,082 947

16,902 5.0

TRRBE-_TZTLF+_A=1+—BL=f
FEEF AKEREBLIHRMBEI DNZE

Year ended
31 December 2007
HE-ZZtE
+ZA=t-ALFE
RMB’000 %
ARET T
2,587 0.7
5,376 1.5
344,869 95.2
9,546 2.6

446,182 100.0

317,274 100.0

Year ended
31 December 2005
HE-ZTHE
TZA=T-ALEE
RMB’000 %
ARETT
117,541 26.3
9,058 2.0
93,679 21.0
13,587 3.1
19,624 4.4
172,825 38.8
18,484 4.1
1,384 0.3

Year ended
31 December 2006
HE2-TE/F

+ZA=+-ALEE
RMB’000 %
ARETT
17,808 5.6
1,389 0.4
84,645 26.7
226 0.1
69,492 21.9
9,976 3.1
131,526 415
2,212 0.7

362,378  100.0

Year ended
31 December 2007
HE-BEtE
+ZA=t-HLEE
RMB’000 %
ARETR
29,623 8.2
1,264 0.3
161 -
3,596 1.0
16,197 4.5
310,733 85.7
804 0.3

446,182 100.0

317,274 100.0

362,378  100.0

Others include Henan Province, Shanxi Province and other overseas * He#EeiEnmEE c LWEERETREIMEE -
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN R DT

Gross profit margin was 9.7% (2006: 13.5%) and there is a
mild decrease in the profit margin due to keen competition. The
Group continues to procure cost control to mitigate the impact
of price competition caused by intense competition in the mobile
phone industry.

Other revenues mainly include processing income and recorded
a decrease of 38.4% over the previous year. Selling expenses
recorded a mild decrease of 13.8%, while administrative
expenses rose by 214.9% over the previous year. For the
year ended 31 December 2007, finance costs amounted to
RMB31,862,000 (2006: RMB17,638,000), which represented
an increase of 80.6% over the previous year and was mainly
attributable to additional bank borrowings raised for the
construction of new factory premises and the rising demand for
other working capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, loss attributable to
shareholders of the Group amounted to RMB190,476,000 (2006:
RMB21,087,000). Emergence of loss attributable to shareholders
was principally due to the increase in administrative expenses,
comprising mainly impairment loss on receivables and inventories
recognised during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND ACQUISITION
As at 31 December 2007, save as disclosed in this report, the
Group did not have any significant investment and acquisition.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE

During the year, the Group transferred 24% equity interest in
Ningbo Bolang Electrical Appliance Company Ltd to two third
party and the Company became an associated company of the
Group. Further, A-Tech Technology (HK) Ltd. disposed of its
entire 51% equity interest in E-Sync International Ltd. to a third
party.

FAEEBITH( ZFTZTNF 183.5%) © M HA
RBEFER UBEBRFBEM TR - AEH
TEEEHRERA  EAREBERRFNE
2 ERHENRBEFRESHZE TR -

EPWXTFSaEMIEASWA  KEER
138.4%  HHEBRAREZFEM T 13.8% -
MiTHE B A IN214.9% - HE_ZTT+F
+ZA=+—BLFE BMERKAEARK
31,862,0007t (ZZZ X F : AR® 17,638,000
TL) BREF FF80.6% @ T EERNAITEM
EHERIREEmNMNRTEERECEES
eEREFA -

/]

HE-_ZZ+FE+-_A=+—HIFE K&
B R E(REE A ARK190,476,0007C (=&
TNE AREE21,087,0005T) @ HIRA R EML
EENETZERRARTRERLAMS  TRE
BEXEZaEFRNERABRBKERREFENRE
518 o

FEREERRERWE
RZZEZELF+T A=+ BRRAEAREMR
WEES  REBWEEAERIRE RS -

AEERBED

WARFE  AEEE N SRR R EEERA
A4 ARG ERETWEE=T > ZLQA
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had current assets of
RMB331,594,000 (2006: RMB504,939,000), representing a
decrease of 34.3% compared with last year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the reduced bank balances and cash
arising from repayment of bank borrowings during the year.
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had current liabilities of
RMB630,446,000 (2006: RMB602,479,000), which represented
an increase of 4.6% and was mainly due to the increase in other
payables and funds from shareholders and associates. As at 31
December 2007, the unutilised bank loan facilities and cash flow
generated in the ordinary course of business were sufficient for
the capital requirement of daily operations and the new facilities
despite its net current liability status.

Finance and banking facilities

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had cash and bank
balances of RMB202,276,000 (2006: RMB222,937,000),
short-term bank borrowings of RMB225,840,000 (2006:
RMB291,570,000), and net borrowings of RMB23,564,000
(2006: RMB68,633,000) respectively. The borrowings were
secured by certain property, plant and equipments and bank
deposits of the Group. The Group will seek to replace the
existing short-term bank facilities by long-term bank loans and
secure bank loans with lower costs of borrowings, so as to
improve the Group’s financial position and reduce financial costs.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2007 was 35.6%
(2006: 36.7%), which is expressed as a percentage of the total
bank borrowings over the total assets.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 36 and 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Capital structure and financial resources

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had net liabilities
of approximately RMB1,371,000 (2006: net assets
RMB187,540,000). The Group’s operations and investments are
financed principally by its internal resources, bank borrowings
and shareholders’ equity.

10
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN R DT

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s income and expenses were denominated in RMB
while certain procurement transactions were settled in US dollars.
The Group regulated its outstanding foreign exchange balance
by conducting sales settled in US dollars to reduce its foreign
exchange exposure. Since the existing bank loans are repayable
in RMB, there was no material foreign exchange risk. The Group
will review and monitor foreign exchange risk from time to time
and may enter into forward swap contracts to hedge such risks
where appropriate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007 is set
out below:

Functions

Sales and marketing HERMIGHEE

R&D i g

Production (including quality control) SE (BEESE)
Finance and administration B 7% R AT
Procurement KA

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 454 employees (2006:
871 employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms and the performance, qualifications and experience
of individual employee. Bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees in recognition and reward of their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme.

S EE L B
ZSE@E’JHK)\&SE&LAAE%J@ i &R 7 $R

BALELSEN AEEBBEBTSUETHEE
B iHE Eﬂ’éﬁ&W@iﬁl\E iﬁ%%%E LA JRLAES S0
ERRE - AR BEERTEFTEIUNAREREER
%%’I%ITTEEK%EHM REEE
PR RERIVERR  REERIIZEH
AEEH - LN R BEERRE -
EERMEBE
BHE-_ZZRF —TEZRNEFR_ZZLF
TZA=+-BLE=ZEFEZF A5EESR
BB BEHDIT :
i3 e
Headcount for the year
ended 31 December
AE
BE+-A=+—BHI1LEE
2005 2006 2007
85 42 43
60 78 14
877 633 329
90 80 22
30 38 46
1,142 871 454
EBERMEBER
W—%%t¢+—H:+—E'$E@ﬁ%4
ZRE(ZEZERF 8712 EE) e 2K

%%m%ﬂ%?ﬁ&ﬂ%ﬂ@%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ BIR R R
mEE ° hﬂl%U%ﬁ#iE’]?éﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ,% :
EREBERNEE MK - HERANEHERE
PREH B R -
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN R DT

STAFF QUARTERS

Workers and staff of the Group are provided with accommodation
within the vicinity of the Group’s production facilities premises
at No. 65 Siming Road East, Yuyao City. The Directors confirm
that, apart from the above accommodation, there was no other
housing benefit provided by the Group to its staff.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group has not experienced any significant labour disputes
or strikes which have led to the disruption of its normal business
operations. The Directors consider that the Group maintains
good relationship with its employees.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management are set out on page 17 to page 19.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals in the Company are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The expanded production capacity of the new factory premises
and the possession of the 3G mobile phone production license
will both enable manufacture new products launched to the
market and serve production orders of group companies,
related parties and external customers. Short-term plan targets
at full utilization of the production capacity whilst long-term
plan focuses over balanced development in mobile planes,
controllers, LCD/PCBA and other products. The Group will
continue leveraging on its competitive advantages of research
and development know-how, well-established customer base
and highly recognised product portfolio to capture larger market
shares in the intelligent electronic consumer product market.

12
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company had
complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”)
in all material aspects except that no remuneration committee
had been set up as required by rule B1.1 of the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2007, the Board comprises eight members,
including the chairman and three executive directors, two non
executive director and three independent non-executive Directors
(the “INED(s)”). Each of the members possesses sufficient
experience and qualification which enable them to discharge
their duties properly.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of
the Group’s overall development strategies. The daily operation
is delegated to the chief executive officer and the executive
directors. None of the INEDs is interested in the business of
the Group and their independence has to be confirmed upon
appointment or reappointment. Currently, there is no financial,
business, family or other relevant material relationship among the
existing directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all
the directors shall be elected at the general meeting of the
shareholders and the term of office shall be three years,
renewable upon reappointment or re-election.

Board meetings are conducted on a periodic basis and with
reference to the operation needs. During the year, the board held
eight meetings and the attendance of the directors is set out on
page 15.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the
financial reporting and internal control system of the Group. The
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Ding Gang Yi (Chairman of the committee), Mr.
Tang Zhen Ming and Mr. Ku Kin Shing. Mr. Ku is a committee
member with professional accounting qualification. The audit
committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2007 and the attendance of the committee members
is set out on page 15.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 | =22t § 5

TEERER

BRIf MIRAI AR E AR M5 ENEEE
AER TR A EB1HEM R E R H
MEZEEI ARANBE_TZTLFT_H
=St -BLEFEEREATE—EETTAHN
MIE °

B9

R_ZEZLF+_A=+—H E=gdh/\%
REMEK  BREIFREE=Z2NTESFT M
NIRATEEN=-"RBIIFATES -EFS
EXREBDEERARBRMNEENLERITHER

= o

ITFRBEAERTERIANEEN BB ERERE
AREZEARTRASRLATESASE -85
VHRATEFTHMERNAKEXRBGHHREB TR
@ WRHEEREEARERERERELEB M
(VAN
SHEHEBEKRBE -

REARBNAAERMURE  MBEEFA
RERARGLEBEL EH=F REHE
i BIEEE -

EFEeEHRBEEABERTEE - TR &
FERTTN\REH BSEFHFRILEHRNSE
168 °

EREES

ERZEENIZREREEARENM K H
TRFRABRERERG - EREZESH=%28
TIMTESAK MTRIREE(ZESE
B) BIRPEERSEELEL REERAAR
BEXEHERMNEZEERE -BE_TTLHF
TZA=1T-HLFE BRZESHETH
REH BREENBEMHELEHNFEIGE

13



NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED | TR lUZ % &8 F R 10 B R 4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DREARE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

As the number of the directors is limited, remuneration committee
has not yet been set up by the Company. The remuneration
policy of the directors is formulated by the Board and subject
to approval by the shareholders at the general meeting. The
Board takes into account of the respective duties, performance
and contribution to the Company of each of the directors with
reference to the market rates when deciding their remuneration.

Mr. Liu Feng was appointed as the executive director on 5
October 2007, and Mr. Zheng Yi Song and Mr. Wang Wei Shi
were appointed as non-executive directors on 5 October 2007.
In the opinion of the Board, the remuneration determination has
been with a high degree of independence. Yet on the long-term
basis, it believes that the establishment of the remuneration
committee can enable the introduction of a reasonable and
encouraging remuneration policy which is beneficial to the
Group’s development.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee has not yet been set up by the
Board. As a result, the nomination for a new member has to
be considered and approved by all members of the Board. The
candidate for the addition to the Board shall possess appropriate
qualification and experience and shall only be duly appointed
after the consideration and assessment of the Board.

During the year under review, Mr. Liu Feng was recommended
as Executive Director and Mr. Zheng Yi Song and Mr. Wang Wei
Shi were recommended as non-executive directors respectively,
and their appointments to join the board were made after the
detailed assessment by the Board.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

As at 31 December 2007, the numbers of meetings held by the
Board and the Audit Committee and the respective attendance
of the directors are as follow:

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman) BLkE (FE)
Mr. Wang Ya Qun TR A

Mr. Liu Xiao Chun REEFLE

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun BIEELA

Mr. Chen Zheng Tu BRIE 54
Non-executive Directors FFHTEF

Mr. Li Ming EXRES

Mr. Zheng Yi Song R AN A

Mr. Wang Wei Shi TREEE
Independent Non-executive Directors B HHTEE
Mr. Tang Zhen Ming EIREASE &

Mr. Ding Gang Vi TMIZR e E

Mr. Ku Kin Shing REELRAE

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing
set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
code of conduct for securities transactions conducted by the
Company’s directors. After making specific enquires to all the
board members, the Board confirmed that all the directors have
compiled with the relevant code of conduct and all applicable
dealing standards.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The respective responsibilities of the directors and the auditors
towards the shareholders in respect of the financial statements
and audited financial statements are set out in page 28.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company regularly reviews its internal control system in
order to ensure its effectiveness. Reviews on the financial,
operation and risk management measures are conducted on
a periodic basis so as to maintain the standard of effective
management.

AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for the
appointment of the external auditors, including the engagement
of non-auditing tasks and fees. During the year under review, the
Company has appointed PKF to audit the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2007, the fees paid for the audit of
the Group’s financial statements amounted to RMB1,850,000.
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Directors

The Board currently consists of 8 Directors including 3 executive
Directors, 2 non-executive Director and 3 independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng, aged 44,was appointed as the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and the compliance officer of
the Company on 5 October 2007. Mr. Liu was the executive
assistant to the President of China Ruilian Holding Corporation
(“China Ruilian”) before joining the Group, and will be responsible
for the implementation of the Group’s objectives, policies and
strategies as well as day-to-day management and operations.
He graduated from Dongbei University of Finance & Economics
with a bachelor’s degree of Industrial Accounting in 1986, and
has over 13 years of experience in corporate management and
electronics business.

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun, aged 45, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO). Mr. Gong obtained a Master’s Degree
in Engineering from Xibei Telecommunications and Engineering
Institute in 1987, and has 9 years of technical, operation, sales
and management experience in the mobile handset industry. Mr.
Gong had been the Senior Vice President of SIM Technology
Group Company prior to joining the company, held various
managerial positions in ZTE Corporation since 1998, and was
responsible for the development of phased array radar in Radar
Institute of Huanghe Machinery and Electronics Factory in 1987.
Mr. Gong joined the Group in November 2006.

Mr. Chen Zheng Tu, aged 56, is a founder of the Group and
an executive Director. Mr. Chen had worked with Yuyao 2nd
Automobile Electrical Equipment Factory and has over 23 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry. He is responsible for
the strategic planning and corporate promotion of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Yi Song, aged 45, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 October 2007. Mr. Zheng is
currently an executive director of China Ruilian, and China Ruilian
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He graduated with
a bachelor’s degree in management from Capital University of
Economics Business in the People’s Republic of China in July
1986. Mr. Zheng has over 23 years of experience in corporate
management and electronics business.
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Mr. Wang Wei Shi, aged 52, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 October 2007. Mr. Wang
graduated from Hubei Television & Radio University in the
People’s Republic of China in 1992 with a bachelor's degree
in electro-mechanical engineering, and has over 34 years of
experience in the electronic business and manufacturing of
fibreglass, refrigerator, and mobile phone assembly. Mr. Wang is
the brother of past director, Mr. Wang Ya Qun.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Zhen Ming, aged 44, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from the Beijing Institute of Technology
with a doctorate degree in engineering in March 1994. He had
worked with Beijing Institute of Technology Industrial Company
and is now working with Beijing ChinaSoft FE International
Information Technology Ltd.. He has over 8 years of experience
in management and administration. He joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2001.

Mr. Ding Gang Vi, aged 42 is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from the Beijing Institute of Technology
with a doctorate degree in engineering in September 1993. He is
currently an associate professor and the Sub-Dean of the School
of Software of the Beijing Institute of Technology. He joined the
Group as an independent nonexecutive Director in December
2001.

Mr. Ku Kin Shing, aged 46, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Ku is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and CPA (Aust.), and graduated
from University of Canberra in 1991. Mr. Ku had worked with an
international audit firm for 8 years, and is currently working as
Financial Controller in a company listed on Singapore Exchange
Limited. Mr. Ku joined the Group in June 2006.

Supervisors

Mr. Cheng Ping, aged 44, is a Supervisor and does not hold
any other position in the Group. He graduated with a bachelor’s
degree from Anhui University of Education in 1988, and is
currently the general manager of Enterprise Management
Department of China Ruilian Holding Corp. He has over 18 years
of working experience in management and administration.
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Mr. Yang Li, aged 46, is a Supervisor and does not hold any
other position in the Group. He graduated with a bachelor’s
degree from Shanxi Electro-engineering University in 1986, and
is currently the vice-president of China Ruilian Holding Corp. He
has over 27 years of working experience in management and
administration.

Ms. Wang Ying, aged 48, is a Supervisor and the manager of
the QC department of the Group. Please refer to the section
“Senior management” below for details of her qualifications and
experience.

Senior management

Mr. Zhang Wen Gang, aged 42, is the assistant to the Chairman
of the Group. Mr. Zhang had worked with Yuyao Light Industry
Machine Factory, Yuyao Kuangshan Machine Factory, and Yuyao
2nd Light Industry Co., Ltd. and has over 16 years of experience
in accounting and financial work. He is involved in the accounting
aspects of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2001.

Mr. Sun Li Chun, aged 43, is the assistant to the general
manager of the Group. He graduated from the Tianjin Business
College with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1989.
Mr. Sun had worked with Ningbo Handa and has over 4 years
of experience in sales and marketing. He joined the Group in
August 2000 and is responsible for overseeing the sales and
marketing of the Group.

Ms. Wang Ying, aged 48, is the manager of QC Department.
She graduated from Tai Yuan Industrial Institute in August 1982
with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering majoring in electronic
engineering. She is a senior engineer and had worked with
Liujibu Taiyuan Fenxi Machinery Factory and Hangzhou Dongbao
Air Conditioner Factory. She has over 18 years of experience in
R&D. Ms. Wang is responsible for overseeing the QC Department
of the Group. She joined the Group in April 2001.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Chi Tat, aged 54, is the financial controller of the
Group. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and holds the
degree of Master of Business Administration from The Open
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined the Group in November
2006, and has over 20 years’ experience in accounting and
auditing in previous employments.
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EEERES

The Directors present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are the design,
manufacture and sale of intelligent controller systems for various
consumer electrical and electronic appliances and the assembly
of mobile phones. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographic segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 33.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2007.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
34(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 15. The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2007.
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BANK BORROWINGS
Details of bank borrowings of the Group during the year are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company and no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), which will oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 111 to 112.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company to any of its Directors,
Supervisors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Ya Qun
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun
Mr. Liu Feng

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu

(resigned on 5 October 2007)
(resigned on 5 October 2007)
(appointed on 5 October 2007)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Ming

Mr. Zheng Yi Song

Mr. Wang Wei Shi

(resigned on 5 October 2007)
(appointed on 5 October 2007)
(appointed on 5 October 2007)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Zhen Ming
Mr. Ding Gang Yi

Mr. Ku Kin Shing (resigned on 30 April 2008)
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Supervisors

Ms. Wang Ying

Mr. Chen Qian (resigned on 6 March 2007)

Mr. Zhang Xing Jiang (resigned on 11 June 2007)

Mr. Yang Li (appointed on 11 June 2007)
(

Mr. Cheng Ping appointed on 11 June 2007)
Members of the audit committee

Mr. Ding Gang Yi (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Zhen Ming

Mr. Ku Kin Shing (resigned on 30 April 2008)

In accordance with Articles 89 and 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the
Board since last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be
elected at the coming shareholders’ general meeting for a term
of three years. A director or supervisor may serve consecutive
terms if re-elected upon the expiration of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on page 17 to page 19.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/her
date of appointment as a Director or, as the case may be, as a
Supervisor and thereafter subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or Supervisors who
are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts
disclosed above, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or a Supervisor of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2007, the interests and long positions of each
Director, Chief Executive and Supervisor of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of RMB0.10 each of the Company as at 31
December 2007:

Number of
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Approximate

Name of Director/

Domestic Shares
of RMBO0.10 each
(the “Domestic
Shares”) held

Chief Executive/ B REE
Supervisor AR®0.10t  Nature of
B2 TETRAE/ WARER interest
EEpE (TRER)HE REztE
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun 91,650,000  Beneficial owner
BEELE Domestic Shares ~ B#EA A
(note 2)
91,650,000/% M & &
(F5E2)
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu 63,100,000  Beneficial owner
BRIE+ 4 Domestic Shares ~ B#EE A
(note 2)
63,100,0000% & %
(F5E2)
Mr. Yang Li 41,600,000  Beneficial owner
B L% Domestic Shares ~ B#EA A
(note 2)
41,500,000/% & &
(F5E2)
Mr. Zheng Yi Song 129,500,000 Interest of controlled

RINFT L

Domestic Shares (note 2)

129,500,0008% W& fi%
(Hzx2)

corporation (note 1)
g NSEo)
(BF&E1)

percentage of
shareholding

Approximate
percentage of

held in same shareholding in

class of  the registered

securities capital

Long/short 1t B 28 Rl EEMER

position BEED BAER

/%R BERE DT BIt

Long position 24.77% 18.33%
3R

Long position 17.05% 12.62%
R

Long position 11.22% 8.30%
e

Long position 35% 25.90%

8
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Notes:

(1) Mr. Zheng Yi Song is not a registered shareholder of the
Company. His indirect shareholding interest in 129,500,000
shares of the Company is held through Shenzhen Ruilian
Investment Company Limited (“Shenzhen Ruilian”), which holds a
90% direct interest in China Ruilian Holding Corporation (“China
Ruilian”), a registered shareholder in 129,500,000 shares of the
Company.

Both Shenzhen Ruilian and China Ruilian are established and
based in the PRC. Mr. Zheng Yi Song holds a direct interest of
32% in Shenzhen Ruilian.

2) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each, in the
registered capital of the Company, which are subscribed for or
credited as fully-paid in Renminbi.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the
Directors, Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in,
or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of SFO).

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
enabling the Directors, Chief Executives and Supervisors of the
Company to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

According to the register of substantial shareholders maintained
under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31 December 2007,
the Company had been notified the following substantial
shareholders’ were interested in 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the Directors, Chief Executives and
Supervisors.

Name of Number of  Nature of
shareholder shares held interest
RRHZ/ 28 FEROBE HRME

China Ruilian 129,500,000  Beneficial owner

o e Domestic Shares ~ E#EA A
(notes 1 and 2 above)
129,500,000 W& %

(B3 &k2)

Shenzhen Ruilian Interest of controlled

it

129,500,000
Domestic Shares
(notes 1 and 2 above)
129,500,000/ W& Bk
(B3 &k2)

corporation
S ey IVNGL £

Beneficial owner

ESlEA

Wang Ya Qun
THE

37,850,000
Domestic Shares
(note 2 above)
37,850,0000 W& %
(ExHizE2)

14,245,000 H Shares

(note 1)

14,245,000 HM&
(FisE1)

Martin Currie China Hedge
Fund Limited

Investment manager
REKE

Martin Currie Investment
Management Limited

14,245,000 H shares

(note 1)

14,245,000 HB%
iEa))

Investment manager
REKE

FERRRAQ TR AIER
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BEREBEEFLMERIFEIBHREFEN
IZRREBECHMERS R-_TZELF+ A
=t+—HB ARAEMEUTIZRREAR
NRAIEEITRAE%NIA Lz - ELERTE
FALXEBEEHES  T2TRABRE

EMEEA

Long/short
position

i/ %R

Long position
i)

Long position
3}

Long position
i)

Long position
i)

Long position
e

o

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in same class
of securities
ERERNES
BRARRBEDH

35%

35%

10.23%

10.96%

10.96%

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the registered
capital
HEMER
BARREDY

25.90%

25.90%

7.57%

2.85%

2.85%

25



NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED | T Iz R 68 F AR 40 & fR 2 &)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEWMEE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE

SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of Number of  Nature of
shareholder shares held interest
BELEYES FERA8E RBEME

Martin Currie (Holdings)

12,680,000 H shares

Beneficial owner

FTERRRAQRARDHER ()

Long/short
position

/%R

Long position
35

Long position
3}

Long position
)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in same class
of securities
EREHNES
BABRAED

9.75%

9.88%

6.31%

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the registered
capital
HEREX
BABRAD Y

2.53%

2.57%

1.64%

Ltd. (note 1)  EHEEA
12,680,000/%HM&
i)
UBS AG 12,850,000 H shares  Person having a security
(note 1) interest in shares
12,850,000[HE ~ RRIDEBER
(F3E1) BmiAT
Dai Huan 8,200,000  Beneficial owner
Hshares (note 1) EzMHAA
8,200,000 H
Cina))
Note:
(1) “H Share(s)” represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a

nominal value of RMB0.10 each in the registered capital of the
Company, which are listed on the GEM and subscribed for and
traded in Hong Kong dollars.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 24.2%
— five largest customers combined 50.2%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 17.2%
— five largest suppliers combined 32.1%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out
in Appendix 15 Code on Corporate Governance Practices of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2007.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business that directly or
indirectly competes with the business of the Group or has any
other conflicts of interest.

AUDITORS

Messrs. PKF were appointed as auditors of the Company with
effect from 30 November 2007 to fill the vacancy made by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu with effect from 28 November 2007.

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PKF, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Feng
Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 30 June 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMRES

PKF

Accountants &
business advisers

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NINGBO YIDONG
ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ningbo
Yidong Electronic Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) set out on pages
33 to 110, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMRES

Except for the limitation in the scope of our work as explained
below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

However, because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

(1)

@)

3)

Scope limitation - Inventories

We did not observe the counting of the physical inventory
stated at RMB116,824,000 as at 31 December 2006,
since the date was prior to our appointment as auditors.
We were unable to satisfy ourselves as to the inventory
quantities at that date by other audit procedures.

Scope limitation — Plant and machinery

In respect of the plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB12,637,000 included in the Group’s
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2007,
in the absence of sufficient evidences available for our
inspection, we have not been able to verify its existence
and carrying amount.

Scope limitation — Impairment loss on trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables

Included in the impairment loss on trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables of RMB62,137,000
recognised in the current year as stated in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements was an amount
of RMB55,783,000 in relation to the opening balances
brought forward from 31 December 2006. We were unable
to obtain sufficient information and explanations from the
directors regarding the assessment of the reasonableness
of the aforementioned basis of allowance and accordingly
unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether the impairment
loss related to the opening balances should have been
recognised during the current year.
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(4)

(%)

(6)

30

Scope limitation — Impairment loss on amount due from a
related company

The impairment loss on amount due from a related
company of RMB16,795,000 recognised in the
current year as stated in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements was in relation to an amount of
RMB28,720,000 included in the opening balance brought
forward from 31 December 2006. The Group provided
such allowance due to the quality problem of the products
sold to the related company. We were unable to obtain
sufficient information and explanations from the directors
regarding the assessment of the reasonableness of the
aforementioned basis of allowance and were unable to
satisfy ourselves as to whether any further allowance was
required to be made during the year ended 31 December
2007.

Scope limitation — Tax recoverable written off

In respect of the tax recoverable written off of
RMB13,526,000, which is related to opening balance
brought forward from 31 December 2006, included in
the income tax expense in the current year, we have not
been provided with tax clearance letter issued by the Tax
Bureau and other evidence for inspection and accordingly
unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether it should have
been expensed in the current year.

Going concern basis

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosures made in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements concerning the basis of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements made by the
directors. As explained in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group is currently undertaking a
number of measures to relieve the current profitability and
liquidity problem of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
upon the ongoing support of the Group’s bankers and/
or the financial institutions, the undertaken financial
support by a substantial shareholder, and the attainment
of profitable and positive cash flow operations of the
Group to meet its future working capital and financial
requirements. The consolidated financial statements do
not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the implementation of such measures become
unsuccessful. Details of the circumstances relating to this
fundamental uncertainty are described in note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(7)

Although disclosures have been made, we consider
that there exists certain extreme inherent uncertainties
surrounding the circumstances under which the Group
might successfully continue to adopt the going concern
basis. Thus, we have disclaimed our opinion in respect of
this issue.

Contingent liabilities in respect of disposal of properties
interest

As explained in notes 2(b)(v) and 36(e) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has signed an
agreement with the local government for the potential
disposal of its existing factory premises for a preliminary
consideration of approximately RMB80,000,000. In this
regard, the Company failed to deliver the possession
of the existing factory premises before a pre-agreed
date pursuant to the terms of the agreement. As a
consequence, a daily compensation of 0.005% on
the basis of total consideration will be levied and the
percentage will be double if overdue for more than one
month (the “Alleged Penalty”) according to the agreement.

This potential disposal constitutes a very substantial
disposal and will be subject to the approval from the
extraordinary general meeting to be held according to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”). As at 31 December 2007,
the Alleged Penalty has not been accrued in the books
of the Group as the directors of the Company are of
the opinion, with the advice from a legal adviser, that
the aforesaid agreement may not be enforceable on the
ground that the Company had breached the GEM Listing
Rules.

We consider that appropriate disclosures concerning
the contingent liabilities in respect of aforesaid disposal
of a leasehold land and buildings have been made, but
the fundamental uncertainty is so extreme that we are
unable to form an opinion as to whether the Group has
obligation to pay the Alleged Penalty and whether the
Alleged Penalty should be provided for in the consolidated
financial statements.

(7)
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Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of the matters set out in points (1) to (7) above may have
a consequential and significant effect on the financial positions of
the Group as at 31 December 2007, the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion: disclaimer of view given by consolidated
financial statements

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an
opinion on the consolidated financials statements as to whether
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
at 31 December 2007 and of the loss and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and as to whether the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Report on matters under sections 141(4) and 141(6) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance

In respect alone of the limitation on our work as set out in the
“Basis for disclaimer of opinion” section of this report:

(i) we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that we considered necessary for the purpose of our
audit; and

(if) we were unable to determine whether proper books of
account had been kept.

PKF

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e sk

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Dividends

Loss per share
Basic

Diluted

BB A
HEME LR KR
BRATIS TR B 1R
PrE® (Fx) /%
FREE

G -

AR R BEIERA A

DH R

BREE

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—BBLF —2TX

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P& ARBT R ARBFIT
7 362,378 317,274

(327,057) (274,311)

35,321 42,963

7 6,186 10,049

(4,850) (5,625)

(179,139) (56,895)

9 (31,862) (17,638)
35 5,915 -

10 (168,429) (27,146)
11 (23,155) 3,901

(191,584) (23,245)

(190,476) (21,087)

(1,108) (2,158)

(191,584) (23,245)

13 = -

14

RMBA K#(38.10 cents?) RMBAR(4.22 cents?)

N/A N/A
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill

Interests in associates
Deferred tax assets
Construction deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Loan receivable

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Prepaid lease payments

Amount due from a shareholder

Amount due from a

minority shareholder
Amounts due from directors
Amounts due from

related companies
Tax recoverable
Held-for-trading investments
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Receipt in advance
Amount due to a shareholder
Amounts due to minority
shareholders
Amount due to a director
Amounts due to related
companies
Amount due to an associate
Dividends payable
Income tax payable
Bank borrowings
Current portion of
deferred revenue
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as 31 December 2007
RoFEELFF—A=1—H

2007 2006
5 3 —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFT

264,949 242,877
36,341 37,282
- 8,542

744 1,588
302,034 290,289
55,899 116,824
1,000 2,480
9,622 99,332
17,970 43,041
941 941
7,798 7,819
721 1,072
600 1,512
34,292 378
- 8,098

475 505
96,171 101,479
106,105 121,458
331,594 504,939
70,507 229,160
160,649 75,372
11,442 -
107,291 -
1,871 280
9,500 -
18,169 -
19,311 -
4,440 4,440
769 -
225,840 291,570
657 1,657
630,446 602,479
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as 31 December 2007

RoFEFELF+=A=+—H

2007 2006
—EELF —EER
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
By &E AR®T ARBTT
Net current liabilities REBABTE (298,852) (97,540)
Total assets less HEERADER
current liabilities 3,182 192,749
Non-current liability *kRBEE
Deferred revenue BT e 33 (4,553) (5,209)
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) BEFE (1,371) 187,540
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 34(a) 50,000 50,000
Reserves ] (53,614) 134,140
(3,614) 184,140
Minority interests DHRFEER 2,243 3,400
DEFICIENCY OF SHAREHOLDERS R & & &4t
FUNDS (1,371) 187,540

APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE BOARD OF REZFERN_TT)N\FA=1+HHEREET
DIRECTORS ON 30 JUNE 2008

Liu Feng Chen Zheng Tu
gz RIE+

Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARKEBE

At 1 January 2006

Exchange differences arising
on transation of foreign
operations and net income
recognised directly in equity

Loss for the year

Total recognised income
and expenses for the year

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Establishment of a subsidiary

Dividend paid to a minority
shareholder

Appropriations

Transfer

At 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007

Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations and net income
recognised directly in equity

Loss for the year

Total recognised income
and expenses for the year
Appropriations
Release on disposal of
a subsidiary

At 31 December 2007
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARRERE AR
Statutory
Statutory public
surplus welfare Minority
Share Capital reserve reserve  Translation Accumulated interests
capital reserve  EERH by reserve losses Total DY Total
RE  ERRE NES Nge ERRE  2HER g REEE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Fsta) (Fistb) (F3Ee)
50,000 40,449 15,530 7,021 340 90,312 208,652 6,863 210,515
- - - - 1,575 - 1,575 - 1,575
- - - - - (21,087) (21,087) (2,158) (23,245)
- - - - 1,575 (21,087) (19,512) (2,158) (21,670)
- - - - - - - 281 281
- - - - - - - 5 5
_ _ _ - - - - (1,591) (1,591)
- - 2,201 - - (2,221) - - -
- - 7,021 (7,021) - - - - -
50,000 40,449 24,772 - 1915 67004 184,140 3400 187,540
- - - - 2,122 - 2,122 - 2,122
- - - - - (190,476)  (190,476) (1,108)  (191,584)
- - - - 2,722 (190,476) (187,754 (1,108) (188,862
- - 206 - - (226) - - -
- - - - - - - (49) (49
50,000 40,449 24,998 - 4,637 (123,698) (3,614) 2,243 (1,371)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nVT\

Note:

BREEE R

Capital reserve

Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issue
of H shares after deduction of the respective share issuance
costs of the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC require the appropriation of 10% of their
profit after income tax determined under the PRC accounting
standards each year to the statutory surplus reserve until the
balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital. According
to the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association, under
normal circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be
used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and
expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For the
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of
the registered share capital.

Statutory public welfare reserve

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, the Company and its
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall make allocation from
its profit after income tax determined under the PRC accounting
standards at the rate of 5% to 10% to the statutory public welfare
reserve. The statutory public welfare reserve can only be utilised
on capital items for employees’ collective welfare. Individual
employees have the right to use these facilities, but the titles to
which will remain with these companies. In accordance with the
relevant PRC laws and regulations, the unutilised statutory public
welfare reserve at 31 December 2005 has been transferred to
statutory surplus reserve and no appropriation of statutory public
welfare reserve is required effective from 2006.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

BARE

ERREREARRBETHRELZORN EE
(EMEREREBRDEITRA)

EERBAESR

AR NERFEXINMBARNARE
RARMNMRE  BSFABRETE ST ERG
EOBMEREENB10%EAETERB AR
&i'ﬁiﬁﬁ & ARZE B TR AR A 8950% e
REBEAR T TEE%W%%Y'E*&
ERT im%% SEA BFEREE
E‘%Ek$&%ﬁ$Aﬂ%$§&EL°
HRBERARAMET  EEBHRATESOHHRED
BAREMERN25% o

AT Rm e

BREBEFEREE KA T&E N v
B A B AR IR B & S E R E R BR AT
%ﬁ%@ﬂww¢m%%kiiﬂmio
EEAmcENRARBEIEEBEMNNEARE
B-ERBEIER=RAELXRE  WEME
BNDERBEAAR - RBMEBEOHBEIESR -
RZZEZTAF+_A=+—BXRBANETE
Am%EL%iim”% NEE - MBEZT

TRERBAIEZEEERATRE °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
n‘/-.ﬁ Eﬁ:%/)lbi%‘%

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P &E AR T AREEF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES PGS
Loss before income tax B S B AR (168,429) (27,146)
Adjustments for: B THIEER uﬂ%‘
Amortisation of prepaid BEIBNEER
lease payments 479 479
Depreciation of property, Wz - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 13,122 14,285
Finance costs R R AR 31,862 17,638
Government grants received B iR AU A B B U BT
recognised as income e (1,656) (657)
Impairment loss on amounts FE YL & R B FRIE
due from associates BIEEE — 4,012
Impairment loss on amounts FEM D EAR R AR
due from minority shareholders BEEE = 792
Impairment loss on amount B —RE:E R A
due from a related company FIBFEEE 16,795 -
Impairment loss on goodwill arising E U BT B A R E A
from acquisition of subsidiaries BN RERE - 103
Impairment loss on property, W - B K
plant and equipment BEEE - 106
Impairment loss on trade receivables, [EWEZZER R4 EHE
deposits and other receivables FEU BR SRR BB A 62,137 14,392
Bad debts written off M H AR 1,434 -
Interest income F B U A (2,285) (1,845)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERE&E
plant and equipment &1 - 58
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A R 35 (5,915) -
Write-down of inventories FEMR 54,103 4,555
Operating cash flows before EEESEHHMNEE
movements in working capital BemE 1,647 26,772
Increase in inventories FEEm (489) (38,449)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables &I 5 BF 3t 2 Z i R4 33,719 46,153
Decrease in prepayments, deposits TERIE - ke kHTE
and other receivables JE UG BR TR D 15,096 17,366
Decrease in amount due from FEY— %HX?ME?)@ZQ
a shareholder 21 -
Decrease/(increase) in amounts M EEFIER L ()
due from directors 912 (1,423
Increase in amounts due from JiE U [ SRIEIE N
related companies (50,709) (35)
Increase in held-for-trading investments #{EE F& &N 2 (505)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ERE SRFNER
bills payables (R 3800 (151,191) 11,822
Increase/(decrease) in other payables ,\EJ?EHEE%K&}?E%E?@
and accruals =0 O 12,740 (541)
Increase/(decrease) in amount JT'ETH-%H?%%’& A)FRIE
due to an associate #hn, CRid) 19,311 (420)
Decrease in amounts due to directors JE1‘J‘§$TXI§M’J\ = (48)
Increase in amounts due FEAT B33 A AR IE S hN
to related companies 233 -
Increase in amounts due JE A D BIAR SR FR IR IE AN
to minority shareholders 1,591 -
Increase in receipt in advance TR FRIEIE N 11,442 -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MEHEMNER

Cash (used in)/generated
from operations
PRC income tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash outflow on disposal of
subsidiaries
Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivable
Decrease/(increase) in construction
deposits
Advances to minority shareholders
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Advances to associates
Interest received
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
received in advance

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advanced from a director
New bank loans raised
Capital contribution by

minority shareholders
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Repayment to a shareholder
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder
Advance from/(advance to)

a shareholder
Advanced from a related company
Dividend paid

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES, NET

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances
and cash
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ANNUAL REPORT 2007

—RELEER

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHF TERRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
(105,679) 60,692
(5,831) (7,019)
(111,510) 53,673
(662) -
5,308 (54,770)
(36,963) (39,506)
1,480 (2,480)
844 (1,588)
= (570)
= (191)
= (108)
2,285 1,845
80,000 53
52,292 (97,315)
9,500 -
540,666 395,741
= 5
(601,084) (274,931)
(31,862) (17,638)
= (4,330)
= (1,591)
107,291 (579)
17,936 -
- (20)
42,447 96,657
(16,771) 53,015
121,458 66,868
1,418 1,575
106,105 121,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a joint stock limited liability company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
manufacture and sale of intelligent controller systems for
consumer electrical and electronic appliances and the
assembly of mobile phones in the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

UNCERTAINTIES IN RESPECT OF GOING

CONCERN

(@) Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
also includes Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

—REH
ARBB/RPEARLME [ FEL
BB BR AR - R AR B
EBRZMARRA (BT BIZER L
e ARAMEMBRERLTELEM
HMORFHRIARER] —EIHKE -

RAVBRRUARFNEEEARE
(TAR®ED 25 -

AEBIT2EPRELEER:  HERE
EARZEHEBESNETHANE
EEERIZRRRARKBRD EREVES

REMBHRRNEREERBHEE
BRENBERTERERE

(a) REEE
ERAMBREDBEREAR
ReEFRNTBERBEBSSTIA
e([BEGHMAT)) BANE
B EREEN(EBTERE
A HMBEESSHMAE
EMHEBEHEN( BB
R REE) MER - o - 47
AU SRR B ZMAERE
FEMBRBIREBERBNEHIEE
B AR ESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. BANBRENEREERSEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BRENBERITEERZ (&)
UNCERTAINTIES IN RESPECT OF GOING
CONCERN (continued)

(b) Material uncertainties in respect of going concern (b) EAHREEEENEARTHRERZE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity of the Group in light of its net
current liabilities of RMB298,852,000 as at 31
December 2007 and a net loss attributable to the
shareholders of approximately RMB190,476,000
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The Group
financed its capital intensive operations by short-
term bank borrowings and shareholders’ equity.
It tends to maintain a fair level of short-term bank
borrowings which are renewed on a regular basis,
as the borrowing costs of such arrangement are
relatively lower. The directors are of the opinion
that, after taking into account the presently
available banking facilities and internal financial
resources, the Group has sufficient working capital
for its present requirements and will be able to
meet in full its liabilities as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. The opinion is based on the
following:

(i) The amounts of banking facilities available
to the Group granted by various banks at
31 December 2007 was RMB387,012,000,
in which RMB183,740,000 was utilised
as at 31 December 2007. Approximately
RMB102,850,000 of the unutilised banking
facilities will expire one year after the
balance sheet date. The directors of the
Company are in ongoing negotiations with
the Group’s bankers to seek their ongoing
support to the Group.

(if) A substantial shareholder has undertaken to
provide the financial support the Group.

RBEEGEEMBERERE AR
AEBEBR_ZEZELF+ A
T HHEBRPEEFEAR
#02098,852,000t K EH E T =T
tF+_A=Z+—BHILFEH
BREEBHEBEERIFIENARE
190,476,0007T * MEEE RIEE
EAEBHRRTBESMKNR -
REBNESHETEELRREE
CERAFTERAAELESHNER
MEE - AR EHRITEERA
Y ER - Bk AN 5 B 8 ) 45
HEHEMEHRTEE YA
THEMR EERAE KEER
A g BRI EE AT B
BRE AEEBAEBEANEESR
CENBAME THEENEH
EERUERERIENEE-

il ERAEBEET

(i) RZZEZETLHF+ A
=+—HA' AEEEBE%
RIIRTEB R B AR
TEEBEAARE
387,012,0007t + E#H AR

#183,740,000t X — 2=
+FE+-_A=+—HEH
A ABARTEELHA
R #102,850,0007T * # %
HERARB -FEH AQ
AEEFEAEEMNTR
IRITHEITER » FREAR
SEHETHESR -

(i) —BEXERREAREHAR
SERE MY H T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. SO ENERRELER HEEIE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL EREWNERTEEHREZ (&)

UNCERTAINTIES IN RESPECT OF GOING

CONCERN (continued)

(b) Material uncertainties in respect of going concern (b) ERFERENERTEERZ
(continued) (&)

(iif)

The directors of the Company continue to
take action to tighten cost controls over
factory overheads and various general and
administrative expenses, and are actively
seeking new investment and business
opportunities with an aim to attain profitable
and positive cash flow operations.

Various products with higher profit margin,
such as PCBA(WMS) and bluetooth
products, have been introduced by the
Group with the aim to diversify the Group’s
products and improve profitability. The
directors expected that PCBAWMS) would
become a major contributor to the Group’s
turnover and net profit in the future.

On 20 December 2006, the Company
entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement with local government (“the
Purchaser”) for the disposal of the land
use right together with buildings thereon
(collectively referred to “the Property”) for a
preliminary consideration of approximately
RMB120,000,000. On 17 August 2007,
a supplementary agreement was signed
between the Company and the Purchaser,
the aforesaid total consideration was
amended to RMB80,000,000 which is
subject to valuation on market value of
the Property at Sale Completion Date by
independent valuers jointly appointed by the
Company and the Purchaser.

iy ARBEEEERDITE
Amse Bz MR
RE—MREITHAIZHK
AR W AE R Y@
BEREBRHB - FENE
BMAEFMATE RS RERER
ERMEMNEE -

(iv) A% E B 3| APCBAWMS)
MEFEREEBIBIR
ENATREM ' BERER
SENERE S #
MiRFAEFIGE - EETE
H - PCBA(WMS)? B % #%
B AAEREEERE AT
WEZRR -

(v) RZEBEERF+ZAZT
H' ARXRET KM
TEARD) MUY ARE
120,000,0007T &) #] 2 &
BHE L FERAEERZ
T FREE(HEB Z
WED Y —BERKE
EHEe RZZEZELFN
A+tHB A2FHEH
B —EEABE BL
MmBREEBITARARE
80,000,0007T (ZBF AR 7
HEHERZENB (G
BERMPNEETXHHBHEZ
WMERNTEETHEME
JE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B AR L

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
UNCERTAINTIES IN RESPECT OF GOING
CONCERN (continued)

(b) Material uncertainties in respect of going concern

(continued)

(v) (continued)
The Company has received a provisional
payment of RMB80,000,000 in respect of
the proceed from disposal of the Property
from the Purchaser in August 2007. In
respect of the provisional payment received
to date, RMB58,850,000 will be used in
repaying mortgage loan of Bank of China
with the balance of RMB21,150,000 being
used as working capital of the Company.

The sale constitutes a very substantial
disposal for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM
Listing Rules”). To date, the sale is not
completed and subject to the approval of
extraordinary general meeting. More details
of this sale are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 May 2008.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

MBRENFEREERBRE
BEENERTHRERE (&)

FEBECENERTRERSE

(4)

v)

(4&)
ARAERZZEZELFN
AR EZMENSE
RIBEEHUWEREER
H A R #80,000,0007T °
B2 5 BT UM BN /9 BG B BR
H - A R ¥58,850,0007T
B AEEEFRBERITH
RIBER MBEARE
21,150,0007T 8l & A 1E A&
REIMEEES -

REZEEBAXIMER
NAERIEREZ ETR
AT 8=tk EmARRLD -
IR E B A QAW
FEEALEER - BE
BRIRL AL ERK
TR ARBERENKRE
EEGHAE S TAEE-
EREEBELENFBHRR
ARAR_TENFHA
=T HEROLQM -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
UNCERTAINTIES IN RESPECT OF GOING
CONCERN (continued)

(o)

Material uncertainties in respect of going concern
(continued)

Due to the reasons above, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

In the opinion of the directors, in light of the
measures taken to date, together with the
expected results of other measures in progress,
the Group will have sufficient working capital for
its current requirements and it is reasonable to
expect the Group to return to a commercially viable
concern. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis,
notwithstanding the Group’s financial position and
liquidity position as at 31 December 2007.

Should the Group be unable to implement the
above measures and fail to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustment would have to made
to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

=)
ma

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

MBRENFEREERBRE

BEENERTHRERE (&)

(b)

FEBECENERTRERSE
(%)

ERNElEd SEMBHRKRT
BRBECEEARRR -

EERR ERESHARINTT
B ERETCEETNRERMARE
HOAR  ARE/EBETHD
EEESURNEBRMMAS X
AaERRAEERKESFRAERE
MEEBELEMBE Bt TwAE
BR -_ZETLFE+_A=+—H
MM BRRARRBESKR - B
EEMABBEEEEERUEGS
MBRRIEBREZER -

fif AN SR B R g M 1T Ll 46 7 B 4%
FEABEREEERERTE B
BEHABNICEENEEES
REAKRE SR REMBRA
EEEMBEFIERG  ARE
HRBEERABIRNEF DR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

3. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(@)

Initial application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards
In the current year, the Group initially applied
the following Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Presentation of Financial Statements,
Paragraphs 124A to 124C

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29

Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting

and Impairment

The initial application of these Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards does not necessitate material
changes in the Group’s accounting policies or
retrospective adjustments of the comparatives
presented.

3.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

IMER R SRR

%mﬁéﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ&%%ﬂﬂ

RAFEE > AEBERERTS
BEMBRESER

BRGIENE IR (B])  HBEROHEN
F124AZ124CE
ERNEREENETR SBUTE BT

BE(BRBREERE  EREAGHE
ZE8)-R2RETH F0FR[HEER
REEH B R
SIRBET%
BE(ERMBAERE  FENBREEN
%8¢9)-RERH F2HNEE
BE (BRHBRS EfEAEDL

#EZEE)-RER  I4

BE(ERMBASRE  PHMBRER
289)-2ER10R AE

Em%%%%%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

BEPAEENSTHRRLR
EK BT 2N R BT A
TEHB W% o
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46

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(0)

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in issue

but not yet effective

The following Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards in issue at 31 December 2007 have not
been applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007 since they were not yet effective
for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2007:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The Group is required to initially apply HK(IFRIC)-
Int 11, HK(FRIC)-Int 12 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 in its
annual financial statements beginning on 1 January
2008, and to initially apply HKAS 1 (Revised),
HKAS 23 (Revised), HKFRS 8 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
in its annual financial statements beginning on 1
January 2009.

3.

(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

MR ST ER (&)

CEMEERERNEEMBR
HEA
RREBE_ZTZELF+ A
St HLEFERAMBBRRE
YAREATIR-_FETLFE+ =
A=+t—HERHTHNEBY R
FEA - T HER U EERR =
ETLE-A-HRABNFEY
i AR AR

EAGEASIR(BE) BBHRRNZ)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Measurement basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination
and the minority share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to
the minority in excess of the minority interest in
the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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PR R R AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for
using the purchase method. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Gooawill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
for which the agreement date is before 1 January
2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions after 1 January 2001, the Group
has discontinued amortisation from 1 January
2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which
the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
for which the agreement date is on or after 1
January 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition
of a subsidiary is presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005 (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in the income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interests in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
of changes in equity of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
From 1 January 2005 onwards, the Group has
discontinued amortisation of goodwill and such
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of
the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

Interests in associates (continued)

Where a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
buildings under construction, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment other than
buildings under construction over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the
course of development for production, rental or
for administrative purposes, the leasehold land
element is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight-line basis over the
lease term. During the construction period, the
amortisation charge provided for the leasehold
land is included as part of costs of buildings
under construction. Buildings under construction
are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when
they are available for use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financials
statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

4.
(h)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR L

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. RMB)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included
in finance costs in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs. Grants related to depreciable assets
are presented as deferred income and are released
to income over the useful lives of the assets.
Grants related to expense items are recognised in
the same period as those expenses are charged
in the consolidated income statement and are
reported separately as other income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1)

Retirement benefits costs

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each
of the Group and its employees make monthly
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the emplyees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. Both the employer’s and the
employee’s contribution are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$20,000 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. As stipulated by
the rules and regulations in PRC, the Group
contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in PRC. The Group contributes
to retirement plans at specified percentages of the
basic salaries of its employees, and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligation payable to retired employees.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes income statement items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax
is charged or credited to the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on
a clearly-defined project will be recovered through
future commercial activity. Where no internally
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss comprise financial assets held for trading.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, held for trading financial assets are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable,
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from a shareholder/
minority shareholders/associates/directors/
related companies and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to a
shareholder/minority shareholders/director/related
companies/fellow subsidiary/associate, dividends
payable and bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

4. EESFBERGE)

(p)

LRIA(#E)
THEBERKETEZ ()
AEENSHEEREE SR
EE-eRBERRATAMR
RN ST BRI N T o

HEo@MAE

HESRMEBERERMNEZERX
REE - HEBMNERZ - BN —
ERRLVEBRRER R
NCIVACES ) NI N
RE - BNRERRITEE H
BABBRRZR LB AT E -

BAT A
RARBITHRATATIES K
R8s 8 (BB EEREITHRA)

AU TERE
TREEXNEHMBEERDR
MEMENERAEREECHE
EMASEBEREEREED
BN EB o> L B B ) R 8 G A AR UL
RoRIEREHMEER &
EREEEEKEBRRERE
BEERAEDERN R RS
EIRAMNZRAERGERAR -

EEBMANIBENEERERE .
HUBS BB - RITERESRE
B RIEERNEBBEREE
HENEENRENZEAERR
FERARR -

61



NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED | T g R 68 F AR 40 & fR 42 &)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS Ak MY

AN
A

4.

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Impairment losses (other than goodwill - see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwill above)
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are also discussed below.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(@)

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group’s net book value of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2007
was approximately RMB264,949,000 (2006:
RMB242,877,000). The Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment on a straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual
value, at the rates of 3.33% to 20% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant
and equipment is available for intended use. The
estimated useful lives and dates that the property,
plant and equipment are available for intended
use reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and recoverable amount of the
receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. An allowance of
RMB78,932,000 (2006: RMB19,196,000) has been
recognised in the current year.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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B ERRMEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
(c) Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

Management reviews an aging analysis at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowances for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production.
Management estimates the net realisable value for
such finished goods, work in progress and raw
materials primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out
an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at each balance sheet date and makes allowances
for obsolete and slow-moving items. An allowance
of RMB54,103,000 (2006: RMB4,555,000) has
been recognised in the current year.

NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS

The Group’s policy is to prudently manage daily operations
and invest surplus funds managed by the Group in a
manner which satisfy liquidity requirements, safeguard
financial assets, manage risks while optimising the returns.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
currency risk and market price risk). The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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6. NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the Group
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group
manages credit risks by setting up credit control
policy and periodic evaluation of credit performance
of the other parties, measured by the extent of past
due or default.

In respect of debtors arsing from trading business,
individual credit evaluations are preferred on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluation focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Debtors are due with 30 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

Carrying amounts of financial assets as at 31
December 2007, which represented the amounts of
maximum exposure to credit risks, were as follows:

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (continued)

(0)

Liquidity risk

6. S@MIAERMR

(b)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Group
manages liquidity risks by monitoring its liquidity
position through periodic preparation of cash
flows and cash balances forecasts and periodic
evaluation of the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations, measured by the debt-to-

equity capital ratio.

Maturities of the financial liabilities of the Group as

at 31 December 2007 were as follows:

Total amounts of contractual
undiscounted obligations:

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Receipt in advance

Amount due to a shareholder
Amounts due to minority shareholders
Amount due to a director

Amounts due to related companies
Amount due to an associate

Dividend payable

Bank borrowings

Due for payment:
Within one year or on demand
In the second to fifth years
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

6. NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL 6. SRTERMBIMEREE (&)
INSTRUMENT RISKS (continued)
(c) Currency risk (c) & HE b
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future E | B 2 FE O S B R & B
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate malBeMm T ENAFESK KK
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. BemErerEkE -
Carrying amounts of financial assets and financial mHEERENESHEELS R
liabilities as at 31 December 2007 that exposed to BERZTEELF+A=1T—
currency risks were as follows: BMEmENT
2007 2006
—2FLHF “ERERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Financial assets denominated LONEEHER SREE ¢
in foreign currencies:
Trade receivables FEUE 2 BR 3K 901 61
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 475 508
Deposits and other receivables e RETREIEER 1,344 212
Cash and bank balances R MIRTT4 R 4,811 6,489
7,531 7,270
Financial liabilities denominated LAONEEHER A TE -
in foreign currencies:
Short-term bank loans RHRITER (6,591) (34,798)
Bills payables EREE (265) (2,470)
Trade payables ERTE ZRA (6,612) (32,391)
Other payables HEeRAIERR (7,690) (735)
(21,158) (70,394)
Net financial liabilities exposed HEEEERE SR
to currency risks BEFE (13,627) (63,124)
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NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (continued)

(©

Currency risk (continued)

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the United States dollars. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations.

Should Renminbi at 31 December 2007
inflate/(deflate) by 10% against all foreign
currencies include United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars, the carrying amount of the
net financial liabilities exposed to currency risk
at 31 December 2007 determined in accordance
with HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates” would be decreased/(increased),
and hence the equity at 31 December 2007
would be increased/(decreased), by
RMB1,363,000/(RMB1,363,000) (2006:
RMB6,312,000/(RMB6,312,000)); and there would
be no effect on the loss for the years ended 31
December 2007 and 2006.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group manages interest rate risks,
when it is considered significant, by entering into
appropriate swap contacts.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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6. NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT RISKS (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2007, pledged bank deposits
of RMB96,171,000 (2006: RMB101,479,000) earning
fixed interests, bank loans of RMB225,840,000 (2006:
RMB285,900,000) bearing fixed interests and bank
loans of RMB Nil (2006: RMB5,670,000) bearing
variable interests were exposed to fair value interest
rate risk.

Since the pledged bank deposits and bank loans
were measured at amortised cost, their carrying
amounts would not be affected by changes in
market interest rates.

(e) Market price risk
Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument traded
in the market will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. The Group manages market prices
risks, when it is considered significant, by entering
into appropriate derivatives contracts.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from equity investments classified as held-for-
trading investments (note 29). The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk.

All investments are subject to a maximum
concentration limit predetermined by the Board.

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, net of
discounts and sales related taxes, during the year.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
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NEEBBIVEENTETA
AR LERAEMERRE KK
ERZERR -

AEEHESBARKIEEERE
(Bi5E29) W IR AN % & P EE A WO ik
AERE R - ANK B S AT
7 mERRRE -

MEREDTEFTEFEALREN
RARBRBEMR

7. WREERETHRA
WREFHNASEMIAEPHEER
WEWRERSERTNEESHEED
b
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B ERRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 7 WKEBETUA(Z)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income are AREEHKEEETWASFTNOT :
as follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREEF T
Revenue e
Sales of controller systems for consumer HEBBESRR
electrical and electronic appliances and EFHM E’J? EESH
income from sales of small AR SHE /N A
electrical appliances BEEAOWMA 17,509 17,192
Sales of controller systems for mobile HEMBNE R 628
phones and income from sales and R R oH B iR
assembly of mobile phones mE Eaaéﬁ’\]ﬂﬁl)\ 344,869 300,082
362,378 317,274
Other income HEEWA
Processing fee income IMITBKA - 2,850
Bank interest income RITHBULA 2,285 1,845
Subsidy income B A 153 1,959
Sales of scrap materials HERER 40 1,571
Government grants received EERBBAMHE K
recognised as income BB & 1,656 657
Exchange gain RN 137
Others He 1,915 1,167
6,186 10,049
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. ERRHBEDY
(a) Business segments (a) %gg/\ﬁg
For management purposes, the Group is currently MEBmS AEEEES AWM
organised into two operating divisions, namely, BEEIPY B ENBEETRR

sales of controller systems for consumer electrical
and electronic appliances and income from sales of

EE%HEJ DDE’]T %lj Dg/\/)blfj\&fﬁg
J\’*”?-EHEE’J%U\ LA K2 38 & %

small electrical appliances, and sales of controller SR RS RN EEERT
systems for mobile phones and income from sales @JEE SEEU A o ZEEP A A E
and assembly of mobile phones. These divisions BERETSHRERMEE-

are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information.
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PR R R AL

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)
Segment information about these businesses is

presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2007

Revenue
Segment results

Unallocated revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2007
BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments

Impairment loss on amount
due from a related company

Write-down of inventories and
provision for obsolete stock

Impairment loss on trade
receivables, deposits and
other receivables

Bad debts written off

Sales of controller
systems for consumer
electrical and electronic
appliances and income
from sales of small
electrical appliances

HEHBERR
ETRRMEHERS
URHENE
ERMWA
RMB'000
ARETTL
WKz — 17,509
PHER 2t
FoRlhE
APEAERER
BERA
HERBARE
BRAEHAIEE
FEHEY
FRERE
R-BB+tE+-A=1+-H
EEBRR
gE
GREESE 37,731
=
GREREE 4,995
HeEs
BALEM -
& 632
BHENHER "
[ —ZEEL A
HEREEE -
WREERREFERE
9,142
ERESEN - BEREE
R RERSE
sk -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

—EBLEER

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

8. EBRHED(E)

=
e
s
)
Dvlll;
~
iy

iR 5 A

25T

BE_ZZ+H+-HA=1+—-HILLEFE

Sales of controller
systems for

mobile phones and

income from sales
and assembly of
mobile phones

HERBER
BHERER
HEREHRR Unallocated
BEZNNA KA
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTL ARETT
344,869
4,610
187,590 408,307
284,369 346,405
37,425 -
12,463 27
353 106
16,795 -
44,854 107
62,137 -

1,286 148

Consolidated
&e
RMB'000
AREFT

362,378
7,361

6,186
(156,029)
(31,362)
5,915

(168,429)
(23,155)

191,684

633,628
634,999

37,425
13,122

479
16,795
54,103

62,137
1,434
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B ERRMEE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2006

Revenue
Segment results

Unallocated revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2006
BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments
Impairment loss on amounts
due from associates
Impairment loss on amounts
due from minority shareholders
Impairment loss on goodwill arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on trade receivables,

deposits and other receivables
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Write-down of inventories

Sales of controller
systems for consumer
electrical and electronic
appliances and income
from sales of small
electrical appliances

8. HXBRtEDE(E)

(a)

XBDE (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

BE-FTRET A=t ALFE

Sales of controller
systems for

mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of
mobile phones

HEHRBEXRR HERDEH
7R RAEIE EHERGR
ZEMREE Y HERERT
EELON EEELILON
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL
3 17,192 300,082
APHEE (3,594) 11,938
FofilE
AREAERER
BEKK
BRSHAIEE
FiERES
FRER
RZBZAE+ZA=1-H
BEAER
BE
GREE®RE 59,935 405,681
8f
GRafnE 18,898 129,508
HuEs
B 5433 20,477
Vil 2,021 10,266
BHENHEER
20 353
G- UNGF
FEEE - -
WD SRRHE
FERE - 792
ARE-RNBARIMELRN
HERESE - 103
0% BERZERESE -
ERESEN  KeREE
RN ERE 725 13,513
EnE - BER
REEE - 10
MRS 1,150 3,405

Unallocated
KR
RMB’000
AREFT

329,612

459,282

14,058
1,998
106

4,012

164
48

Consohdated

RMB OOO
ARETT

317,274
8,344

5,015
(22,367)
(17,638)

(27,146)
3,901

23,245

795,228
607,688
39,968
14,285
479
4,012
792

103

106
14,392

58
4,555
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8.

9.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(continued)

(0)

Geographical segments

The Group’s sales of controller systems for
consumer electrical and electronic appliances and
controller systems for mobile phones and income
from sales of small electrical appliances and sales
and assembly of mobile phones are located in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of
the Group’s revenue by geographical market,
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

8. EXERMWEDI(E)

(b) HWEHH
AEEHEHEERRETAA
HMEZEHRERUARREDEFENIE
HIZRES ARBENEERER
HERREHRRDEEMSRAM
RABEREE -

TR A KB R ETSE D
By gk 5 AT (i & am AR 75 B9 2R

TR ©
2007 2006
—EELEF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong HFE - NEEEE 50,841 183,536
Hong Kong B 310,733 131,526
Others HE 804 2,212

362,378 317,274

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipment, by geographical area in which the
assets are located has not been presented as they
are substantially located in the PRC.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

HRDMEEARYE - BERERER
ETRUNPER A BREEMRE
weE2INEBREBEHDN -

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETT

AR AFRBBEENRITR
HEEEMNE

31,862 17,638
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BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

10.  LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. B eSS
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBTFIT
Loss before income tax has been BATSF AT EE MK,
arrived at after charging/(crediting): GYSE
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration & TR A (BEEEEHS
(note12(a)): (FtzE12(a)))
— Salaries, wages and other benefits -FHe IENMETEF 19,458 26,027
- Retirement benefit scheme contributions - RIKEFIFT B 1,027 650
Total staff costs B8 T A 20,485 26,677
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - WE MR EHITE 13,122 14,285
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BETEN A E R 941 941
Less: Amount capitalised in buildings W BREEET
under construction BEANSRE (462) (462)
Total depreciation and amortisation YrEE M B 13,601 14,764
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN BY & 2,010 1,364
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense DR AMSHFEERAK 326,355 252,955
Impairment loss on amount e — K B E A R SRIE
due from a related company RIEBE 16,795 -
Impairment loss on amounts JE UK Bk & N B FRIE
due from associates VERIEY = - 4,012
Impairment loss on amounts due from FEN D SR TR IR
minority shareholders SRE R - 792
Impairment loss on goodwill arising E YRS B A Bl M E AR
from acquisition of subsidiaries EEREEE - 103
Impairment loss on property, W - WE & EE
plant and equipment BIEEIE - 106
Impairment loss on trade receivables, EWE SRR - Lk
deposits and other receivables EvrIERFUREREE 62,137 14,392
Bad debts written off i SH AR 1,434 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE R
plant and equipment HiEEE - 58
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses PE X (Wak) /B8 F 5 (137) 1,807
Research and development costs it 7% M e 3 R AR 7,261 7,008
Write-down of inventories included MREE - ST ABERA
in cost of sales 1,238 4,555
Write-down of inventories included WRFE - AT
in administrative expenses 52,865 -
Minimum lease payment paid RIBLEEHHE R
under operating leases =L 643 840
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The income tax expense/(credit) comprises:

Current tax
— Hong Kong profits tax
— PRC income tax
— Tax recoverable written off
— Qver-provision in prior years

Deferred tax (note 20)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculate at 17.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC income
tax is calculated at 33% of the estimated taxable profit in
accordance with the income tax law in the PRC for both
years. A subsidiary operating in the PRC is entitled to a
tax exemption for two years commencing from its first
profit-making year followed by a 50% reduction in the
PRC income tax for three years. The PRC income tax for

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

—EBLEER

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

1. FEEExX (ER)

2007 2006
—EELF TEZTREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT

FIEREY, (ER) BiF

BIEATH 18

- BEFER 737 -
— REFTSR 350 1,322
— Y AT Uit 2] B TE 13,526 -
- BEFEBEEE - (1)
14,613 1,321
EIEFETE (F7E20) 8,542 (5,222)
23,155 (3,901)

E50% B FTSTHRR ©

this subsidiary was 50% exempted in both years.

& B NGB T 3% F 2 A4 5 SR BE A A
BE175% E - PFEMGHRIIRESD
B P 15 W 0K 12 7% P M8 F J2 1O b 5T FE AR L
i F AT E33%ATH - —HKRFPEES
R A RN B AR FE R RER
ERE2HB MER=ZFOHTEMEMR
AR ER A - Z M B AR R M EFE
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B HRRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before tax per the income statement

as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 33%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of recognition of deductible
temporary difference recognised
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised
Income tax on concessionary rate
Tax effect on different tax rate
Tax recoverable written off
Over-provision in prior years
Others

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

1. FEHREX (E&)(E&)
FAMBHRAX (BR) TSR
IR AT B EERIOT
2007 2006
—EBELEF TERTRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
B Fr S B Al &5 18 (168,429) (27,146)
EERATSHIREIZ%
ETEMTHE (55,582) (8,958)
RIS AR AT 05
AR & 18,278 4,622
TR E MER A A] F0 70 s
EENTBEE (2,256) -
BT AB B AR
WA B2 (2,809) (1,158)
RERNBE BRI E 9,623 1,181
A BT RERNTRISEE
(34) (321)
REER AR R = EE
Mg 44,603 947
REBEMEFTERFEH (350) (76)
TRIF R T 5 2 827 -
88 AT U @1 B TR 13,526 -
BEFEBEARE - (1)
HEE (2,671) (137)
REFEHEAY, (ER) 23,155 (3,901)
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12.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 12, %= EZREEMS

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 ENKENI1ZG(ZEENFE 12
(2006: 12) directors were as follows: EIVEENME T
Wang Liu Chen Gong Zheng Wang Tang Ding Ku Total
2007 YaQun Xiao Chun Zheng Tu ZhengJun LiuFeng  LiMing  YiSong  WeiShi ZhenMing  GangYi Kin Shing 2007
ZBELE ZBELE
TEE g REL EEE gg E3 BHEN IER BEiR# THZ REE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFR ARETFR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR AR¥TR ARBTR
Fees e - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments ~ EEHi¢
Salaries and ZeREE
other benefits & 413 253 - 297 178 258 - - 12 12 47 1,470
Retirement benefit ~ RIKEF
scheme SRR
contributions - - - - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments Hees 413 253 - 297 178 258 - - 12 12 47 1,470
Mok
Wang Liu Chen Gong Chen Wang Tang Ding Ku  Wai Man Total
2006 YaQun XiaoChun ZhengTu ZhengJun ~ DaJdun Peizhang  LiMing ZhenMing  GangYi WongNing Kin Shing Derek 2006
ZEERE ZEERE
IT#  8mE RE+ BEE REH  IAE 2H  ERE THR TE  ARE  ERER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR AR%TR
Fees we - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments Heie
Salaries and Hekie
other benefits &M 689 725 - 1 7 - - - - - 29 52 1,583
Retirement benefit RIKER
scheme AR
contributions - - - 1 1 - - - - - - - 2
Total emoluments B4 8% 689 725 - 12 78 - - - - - 29 5 158
No director waived any emoluments for years ended 31 HE _ZEE+tEFER_ZTEZEXFEF+ A
December 2007 and 2006. St HIEFEYTEEENETAMNE
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Ex ESkEEME (F)

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12.
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Supervisors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 5
(2006: 3) supervisors were as follows:
Zhang Chen
2007 Xing Jiang Qian
—EEtE
REST (¥

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR

FekETREH - -
RINEHEBIER

(b) EEEe

EN KNSR (ZTETNE 38)

EENMemT
Cheng Total
Wang Ying Yang Li Ping 2007
ZBBtE
£ B BY #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARMTRT AR%TR

Total emoluments HesE - - - - - -
Zhang

Xing Jiang Chen Qian Wang Ying Total

2006 2006

—TERF —TETRF

of BT B Bk THE it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT ARETRT ARBTI AR®BTR

Salaries and other benefits e kAR - - 22 22

Retirement benefit scheme RIREFFT B

contributions - - 2 2

Total emoluments Bl - - 24 24

No supervisor waived any emoluments for years HE_ZZLFR T RF

ended 31 December 2007 and 20086. TZA=ZT—RIEFEIRES

WEERMWE -
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B Rk MY 5t
for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE_FT+F+ A=+ HAILFE
DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 12. EX -ESKEEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(c) Employees’ emoluments (c) EEWS
Of the five individuals with the highest emolument EAREEBRZ S ALTH - M
in the Group, four (2006: two) were directors of the Z(ZBEEXE: WB) 548AQ
Company whose emoluments are included in note FEE HeeHN L X
12(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining one 12a) BT —HB(ZEEXRF: =
(2006: three) individuals were as follows: ZIYATHEB ST
2007 2006
—EELF ZTEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARBTT
Salaries and other benefits HFehkHEEEH 341 858
Retirement benefit scheme RIRERIFTEIE K
contributions 12 14
353 872
Their emoluments were within the following band: e &EEWT :
Number of employees
BEEAH
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 2% %1,000,0007T 1 3
DIVIDENDS 13. RE

The directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007.

LOSS PER SHARE

14.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of RMB190,476,000 (2006: RMB21,087,000)
and 500,000,000 shares (2006: 500,000,000 shares) in

issue during the year.

EEVTEEARBE_TZTLF+ A
=T BEFEIRMEFBES

BREE
BREABBDREFAARQBRER
A AEEEE ARE190,476,0007T ( =
T NE: AR#¥21,087,0007T) K F
A B # 17 i% 19500,000,000/% ( = ZEZ /X
£ 1 500,000,000%) 5t & o
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B ERRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

15. % BERRKRE

Buildings
Computer under
Buildings Leasehold ~ Plantand  and office Motor  construction
inthe PRC  improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in the PRC Total
BENE EKR HE
HERT £5  BEREE HAERG RE  EEEF @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETL  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2006 RZFEREF-A-0 25644 - 107,904 5,280 4,856 111,001 254,685
Additions RE - 29 2,042 1,148 44 36,705 39,968
Acquired on acquisition NGNS
of a subsidiary REA - - - 106 - - 106
Disposals & - - - (44) (155) - (199)
At 31 December 2006 Rz ?2/\¢+ F
and 1 January 2007
’ffti R—B 25644 29 109,946 6,490 4,745 147,706 294,560
Additions - - 4,967 367 - 32,091 37,425
Reallocation i%ﬁﬂ ig 1,143 - (5,786) 4,643 - - -
Decrease due to REEGZ TR D
deconsolidation - - (1,889) (1,075) (821) - (3,279
Exchange difference ELES - 2) (6) - - - )
At 31 December 2007 RoBBLE
+ZB=1-H 26,787 27 107,238 10,425 4,424 179,797 328,698
Depreciation, amortisation 1% + ZH A :
and impairment;
At 1 January 2006 RZES/E-A-H 3,381 - 28,873 3,437 1,739 - 37,380
Charge for the year AEERX 1,139 6 11,178 1,416 551 - 14,285
Impairment loss N Car
recognised in the EpeRib g
consolidated income
statement - - - 106 - - 106
Eliminated on disposals e # - - - (13) (75) - 88)
At 31 December 2006 “ZRNETIR
and 1 January 2007 E+— BR
“TZ+45-A-H 4,470 6 40,046 4,946 2,215 - 51,683
Charge for the year TEERR 1,904 4 9,444 1,372 398 - 13,122
Reallocation EHAR - - (31) 31 - - -
Decrease due to REEGZ TR D
deconsolidation - - (220) (672) (162) - (1,054)
Exchange difference ELZEE - - 2) - - - )
At 31 December 2007 R-BELE
+ZB=1-H 6,374 10 49,237 5,677 2,451 - 63,749
Carrying value FAE
At 31 December 2007 RZEEtE+ZA
=t-A 20,413 17 58,001 4,748 1,973 179,797 264,949
At 31 December 2006 RZZERETZA
=t+-H 21,174 28 69,900 1,544 2,530 147,706 242,877
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

WE - BERRE ()
LmE - BERRENEREE T
RS EE

= 3.33%&E10%
BENELE 20%
B R MR 10% £20%
BHRPDERE 20%
s 20%

FR EFHHEESIRETHMOE
HE RGO ANMBRRAYE  BE R
wEETRY  RZFETLF+ A
=t—8  YEIAFEMRERSRE -

BisE : BREFE AR %20,413,000T N F
TERFRTEAARARGDERND —R
IRITEEMER (MFE39) -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15.
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, at the following rates
per annum:
Buildings 3.33%-10%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Computer and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
During the year, the directors conducted a review of
the property, plant and equipment of subsidiaries in the
segment of controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances. No impairment loss was identified
as at 31 December 2007.
Note: The building with a net book value of RMB20,413,000
is pledged to bank to secure general bank borrowing
granted to the Company (note 39).
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16.
The Group’s prepaid lease AEEMBENAEE
payments comprise: e
Medium-term leasehold land in the PRC AR ARTE S 4
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEWMMEITHDN
Non-current asset EMEBNEE
Current asset MEVEE

BAHEER
2007 2006
—ETLE  TIAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL  ARETR
37,282 38,223
36,341 37,282
941 941
37,282 38,223
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 16. FENHEHEF (&)

Notes: M EE -

(i) The leasehold land with a net book value of (i) BE T EE A R¥15,757,000 &
RMB15,757,000 is pledged to bank to secure general T IR FRITIEAEARA AR ERDY
bank borrowing granted to the Company (note 39). —ARRITE B M ER (M 5239) ©

(ii) The remaining leasehold land with a net book value of (ii) AT BREDFE A R #21,525,0007T B
RMB21,525,000 is pledged to bank to secure general MELTHIIERFERTEAARAT —
banking facilities granted to an associate of the Company KL AT EEN—RIBETEENE
(note 41(c)(ii). R (M 3241 (0)(ii)) ©

17.  GOODWILL 17. BE
RMB’000
ARBEFTTT
Cost PR R

At 1 January 2006 RZZEZERF—H—H 3,315
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary AW E—RWB AR MESE 103

At 31 December 2006 and R-ZEZEAF+ZA=+T—-HBEK
31 December 2007 —EE+LH+ZA=1+—H 3,418

Impairment VENIE]

At 1 January 2006 RZZEZRF—-A—H 3,315

Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEERREEIE 103

At 31 December 2006 and R-ZBAF+ZA=+t—-HK

31 December 2007 —ET+LH+-A=1+—H 3,418

Carrying value BREE

At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZELHF+-A=1+—H -

At 31 December 2006 RZZEXNF+-_A=1—F -
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are R E R FF B A M T 18 58 -

disclosed in note 18.
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

18.  IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 18. PBEHERE®SA
For the purposes of impairment testing, the goodwill R ERAmS W17 ER =S
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary in 2006 as set out NERUWENBATMEANEED 5
in note 17 has been allocated to one individual cash RE-—EAENRESEFLEN([BLE
generating unit (the “CGU”), representing a subsidiary HEBEMN]D) I —xRR{ERSESERET R
engaged in the design and research and development of WEHHB AR - R—_ZEEFE+_H
mobile phones. The cost of goodwill as at 31 December T+ —HoREZESES SN PR
2006 allocated to this CGU is as follows: KA
RMB’000
ARETTT
Design and research and development of BN E G T R
mobile phones
— Shenzhen Denuo Technology — R EFH B
Co., Ltd. (“Denuo”) ARAA (12l ) 103
The Group recognised an impairment loss of RMB103,000 AREBg B EREMELEAN G EBRR
in relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of Denuo, of EEE ARMKI103,000T HHEE%EM
which basis is as follows: T
The recoverable amount of Denuo has been determined mEMAINE S EIR T ABETE RS
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation o HE A FRHUNEEEH ENSED
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets BFEE LB R14.46% BEENIBE SR
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and EEH - MEeELBEMNTBEEHRNNIR
discount rate of 14.46%. Cash flow projections during the SHREEANBERLHANNTBEHEF
budget period for the CGU are based on expected gross KRR TERYTHEE - DR EEE R
margins and expected expenditures during the budget MHEHECDRERE WE_ZSEEH
period. The unamortised goodwill allocated to Denuo has B -

been fully impaired and recognised in profit and loss for
the year 2006.
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19.

84

B ERRMEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

FLEMBER
o REFRUE

Cost of investment in unlisted associates
Less: Accumulated impairment

Share of post-acquisition losses

At 31 December 2007, the Group had interests in the
following associates:

Place of
incorporation/

Class of registration
Name share held and operation
MR,
=8 P R 43 28 5l AR & E B
Ningbo Bolang Electrical Contributed PRC
Appliance Company capital H
Limited (“Bolang”) BEHRA
S
BERAF(DEAD
Yidong-Sola Technology Ordinary Hong Kong
Limited (“Yidong-Sola”) TR e
(note a)
Iz REXBHR AR DA
(Tz=REX]) (M a)
Note:
(a) The associate has been deregistered on 11 January 2008

(note 42).

AR E AR

FEIG IR 1R B 1R

)3-/\*7
WAET

Attributable
equity interest
of the Group
rEE
PEfG R AE

36%

50%

3

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
1,280 420

(1,280) (259)

- 161

- (161)
T+FE+-_A=+—H8 K&

(kA WNCIE ok Fai

Principal activities

FEXE

Manufacture and sale of small
electrical appliances

NERBERHE

Trading of telecommunications
products
BHNEMEER

ZHMERRAER_EENF A+ —

BEUH M (FizE42) ©
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19.

B ERRMEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

19. REEQTER (&)

Included in the cost of investment in unlisted associates EFTHELEARBEARABERBEE
is fully impaired goodwill arising from acquisition of EWHEBEATMEAN EHREDN
associates in prior years. The movements of goodwill are B EBHE N T X

set out below:

RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cost B#:N
At 1 January 2006, 1 January 2007 RZEEZRF—H—B - ZZTZLF
and 31 December 2007 —A—BEkZZFZLF+A=1+—H 259
Impairment A
At 1 January 2006, 1 January 2007 RZFERF—HA—HB —_2FLHF
and 31 December 2007 —A—BRZZEZ+F+_RA=+—H 259
Carrying value BREE
At 31 December 2007 R-ZBZBLHF+-A=1+—H -
At 31 December 2006 RZEZRF+-A=+—F -
The summarised financial information in respect of the BERAEERZE NN EER#nm
Group’s associate is set out below: T
2007 2006
—EELHF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Total assets BERE 28,111 1,030
Total liabilities BERE (31,580) (1,374)
Net liabilities BEFE (3,469) (344)
Group’s share of net liabilities of an associate A& @ E(L — KB LA A
E{,\/$§E - -
Revenue & 23,930 1,219
(Loss)/profit for the year FA (8 &5 (1,421) 42
Group’s share of loss of AEBFRREGE—
an associate for the year il /N )= - -
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19.

20.

86

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REZNTIREZR (&)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of ARAAREFRTYEEETDEBEERERK
loss of an associate as it has no obligation to share post- R 2R - tMAEER K IFER
acquisition loss in excess of its investment cost. The B BML NI RER - 558 ERE
amount of unrecognised share of loss of an associate, ML AT EIREEMN RS REREN
extracted from the relevant management account of the BMENTEBESEHT

associate for the year, cumulatively, is as follows:

2007 2006
—FFLE  TIA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETT

Unrecognised share of loss of an associate RIEREE - E R FEE 512 -
Accumulated unrecognised share of RETARERE(L — K&
loss of an associate NAEE 2,329 99
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 20, BEBBEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised UWTAEREERBFFEENERRATE
and movements thereon during the current and prior BB EERABEED
years:
Impairment
loss on trade
receivable,
deposits
and other
receivables
Accelerated EKES
accounting  HRX - %&E€R  Write-down of
depreciation ~ HUEWERH inventories Others Total
MEEHTE HEES WAFE Aiv @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2006 R-EERE-A-H (571) (1,324) (1,121) (304) (3,320)
Charge/(credit) to income BERYEE

statement for the year %/ (AE) 454 (3,972) (73) (1,631) (5,222)
At 31 December 2006 and RZZERETZA=+-H

1 January 2007 k=ZZ+E-A—H (117) (5,296) (1,194) (1,935) (8,542)
Charge to income EFRERME

statement for the year 17 5,296 1,194 1,935 8,542
At 31 December 2007 RZEBtE+2R

=+-H - - - - -
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20.

21.

22.

PR R R AL

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has unprovided
deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability of the
future profit streams arising from tax losses amounting to
approximately RMB16,109,000 (2006: RMB3,797,000). All
tax losses may be carried forward for five years starting
from the year when the tax losses occurred.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB135,162,000
(2006: RMB5,565,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials A
Work in progress & m
Finished goods BURY oh

LOAN RECEIVABLE
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

20.

21.

22.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

EEBBEE (&)

REER  NEBEREKRETEARBEEE
EENBRREFRME REEHEELER
BEEHNARE16,109,0007T (Z TN
£ AR#3,797,0007T) ° A S
BRI EEXZREEE FTREBRT -

REER  XEENTHNRERERELD
B AR%135,162,0007T ( Z T Z /XN F
AR #5,565,0007C) ° T A] 88 E) A
AT R R E R R A - Bt
WERZ AN Y EEERELERS

rE
2007 2006
—EELF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
38,075 68,377
2,219 14,687
15,605 33,760
55,899 116,824
FE U 3
ZEHEARER 28 AABER
BiE -
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88

PR R R AL

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade and bills receivables
Less: Accumulated impairment losses

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to 180
days to its trade customers.

The impairment losses on trade and bills receivables
charged to the income statement and set off against
the trade and bills receivables during the year are
RMB53,024,000 and RMB6,837,000 respectively.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the balance sheet date, based on payment due date, and
net of impairment losses, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0£90H

91 to 180 days 912180H
181 to 365 days 181£365H
Over 365 days 8365 H

Trade receivables of approximately RMB901,000 (2006:
RMB61,000) are denominated in US dollars, which is
different from the functional currency of the relevant group
entity.

FEWE 5 R RE
W REFRERETR

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

B E Z R R EE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
84,501 112,044
(74,879) (12,712)

9,622 99,332

AEBLTHEFIEFPNEEHEHEN
F60E180H -

FARKEXR NG REERE SRR K
EREENEREZERRERRER
BD R A AN RES3,024,0007T & AR
6,837,0007T °

REE BRI 5 E 8D 8N E S
ERRER (BB RERER) EE S
wmF

2007 2006
—EETLF —ETRX

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

5,833 45,535

865 2,864

2,805 12,288

119 38,645

9,622 99,332

BEHAREI,000T (ZEZTNEF
AR#61,00070) WEIWE SERF T AE
THE BRREEEEERNNEES
?i":lgo
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24.

25.

B ERRMEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) A SHAREHOLDER

Amount due from China Ruilian
Holding Corp. (“China Ruilian”)

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Amount due to China Ruilian

The amount bears interest at a rate of 6.57% and 7.29%
per annum.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of amounts
due from/(to) a shareholder approximate their fair values.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The directors consider the carrying
amounts of amounts due from/(to) minority shareholders
approximate their fair values.

Included in the amount due from a minority shareholder as
at 31 December 2007 is an accumulated impairment loss
of RMB1,029,000 (2006: RMB1,029,000).

24.

& A-F Fh B B Bt SR TR

25.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

FEW, (FEfY) — BIRRRIE

EUFEIRBEXEEAR
~m (([FE] ) A

2007 2006

—EELF —EERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREF T

7,798 7,819

FEAFEAEER 8 BAREX
BE -

2007 2006

—EELF ZEERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

(107,291) -

BRRERFERRCLTERT.29ETE ©

BEERREWR(EM)
REEEE QA FERS

— A REREFIEN

FEd, (FE{Y) D BURRFKIA

ERRESERAR 28 BAREX
BE -EFR i%fﬂﬁl/(ﬁgﬁ)' B R

FREMREEREE QA FERS

F*?%tiﬂ'iﬂi—f—*ﬂ © IR

LEREFRERBREZRFTREBEAR
11,029,000t ZEERNF: ARK
1,029,0007T) °
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PR R R AL

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) DIRECTORS
Amounts with directors disclosed pursuant to section
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as

follows:

Amounts due from
Mr. Wang Ya Qun (note a)
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun (note a)
Mr. Liu Feng

& W kIR
Tt (ita)
EAELE (MiEa)
el s

Amount due to JE IR
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun BEELA
Notes:
(a) Messrs Wang Ya Qun and Liu Xiao Chun resigned as

directors of the Company on 5 October 2007.

(b) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. The directors consider the carrying

amounts of amounts due from/(to) directors approximate

their fair values.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

26. W (BN ESHE

REE
(FEA)

Balance at
1.1.2007
R=BBLHF
—HA—H
k=S
RMB’000
ARBEFT

961
551

1,612

7R ENEDI 161 B IR 3 BE &) FE UL
EEREMT

Maximum

amount
outstanding Balance at
during 31.12.2007

the year RZ-ZZEZ+LHF
FARS t=HA=+—H
KREESH Y 45 8
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARETT

961 -
551 -
600 600
600

(9,500)

IThEHELRIBEFEELECR _ZR
tE+ADBRBEARRES 2B -

EHREREER RE - AARKZ
KEE BEERAREW (B ES
FIAMBREERL A FERE -
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27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES  27. FEW “(FE() BEQATRE

2007 2006
—gTLtE  —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Amounts due from related companies FEU BN B R
RYERFREBRAF RYERFTRRER AT

(“FYEZFR") (note a) (DRYNESR]) (Hita) 17,583 -
ZREZREAERETAA ZRIBZREAREFE AT

(“ZHIEZ") (note b) (T=RIEZ]) (HidEb) 16,368 -
bR RFZER AR IR RFER I BREE AT

BERAR (IR AE”) (MZ=RZE]) (ff5Ee)

(note ¢) 341 341
Fine Best Technology Limited Fine Best Technology Limited

(“Fine Best”) (note d) ([Fine Best] ) (Pfisxd) - 37

34,292 378

Amounts due to related companies FETREE N A FIE
R HERZEBR AT A TER EBRAR

(“EFZE”) (note e) ([ERZZ]) (K3te) (233) -
PR b B F Ak AL mEn R E MR

EREMERAA BREEAH

(“FELIHE”) (note f) (A% ) (HEE) (17,936) -

(18,169) -
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27.  AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES
(continued)

Notes:

(@)

92

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun, a director of the Company, is
also a shareholder of AYIEZE. The maximum amount
outstanding during the year disclosed pursuant to
Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is
RMB42,952,000.

The amount due from J&IJIIZZ is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. The directors
consider the carrying amount of the amount due from &
JIiZEZE approximates its fair value.

The Company holds 90% equity interest of Z#&{{£% on
behalf of a shareholder of the Company.

The amount due from Z#{E% is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. The directors

consider the carrying amount of the amount due from %
#1182 approximates its fair value.

The Company holds 40% equity interest of Iz 5 Fl|ZE
on behalf of Mr. Wang Ya Qun, a shareholder of the

Company, who is also a director of Iz R FZE.

The amount due from UZEF# is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand. The directors
consider the carrying amount of the amount due from Iz
HFZE approximates its fair value.

Messrs. Wang Ya Qun and Liu Xiao Chun, directors of
the Company, are also directors of Fine Best and have
controlling interests in Fine Best.

The relationship was terminated after the resignation of
Messrs. Wang Ya Qun and Liu Xiao Chun as directors on
5 October 2007.

Mr. Yang Li, a shareholder of the Company, is also a
director of EZHx 2 £.

The amount due to /2% Z £ is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. The directors
consider the carrying amount of the amount due to £z
2 £ approximates its fair value.

FEW, (FEfS) B

B &L -

(a)

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

IE ()

ARRAEFETEBEENABRIESR
RIRR R - BIFEE B R BHEHI E161B1K
BENTFAGSAEEEEAARE
42,952,0007T °

FEYORYERFIAREERS - B
BARZREE BERREUCRII
ERFANREEREL R FERE

ARBRE-—BARBREEELH
BZ0% AL -

ERZHEZHER/ERR R
BEAREREE EERRERZH
BEFENERERERAFERS -

ARANRRARBBRRESHELER
B RAEA0RI At - THRAFSE
ERRIERFENES -

FEWIZRMEFERERT B
BEAREXREE EER/EKIEE
NMEFENEREERERAFERS -

RARESTEHAERBEELE
INAFine BestfJZE =E + WK Fine Best
BHERER -

EHBEGFA ISR ALHARESELLE
R-ZBEZLF+AAEHBTEEST 2B
1B E -

ARARRGIEETRERZEN
B

BUOERZ ZEFAREERR 28 -
BAREXREE EFR %FEHL%/J\
ZEFENEANERAXATERSE
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28.

29.

30.

PR R R AL

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

() The amount is unsecured, bears interest at one year’s
primary loan interest rate per annum announced by the
People’s Bank of China and repayable on demand. The
directors consider the carrying amount of amount due to
P EsEE approximates its fair value.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

Bolang 2 BA

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The directors consider the carrying
amount of amount due to an associate approximates its
fair value.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

The amount represents an equity-linked deposit
accounted for as financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, which carries variable interest that is linked to the
market value of certain equity securities listed overseas
and with maturity date on 12 January 2009.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure short-term banking facilities granted to
the Group and are therefore classified as current assets.
The pledged deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging
from 2.79% to 4.14% (2006: 2.25% to 3%) per annum
and will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank
borrowings.

Bank balances carry interest at variable rates ranging from
0.72% t0 0.81% (2006: 0.72% to 2.5%) per annum.

27.

28.

29.

30.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

FEW, (FE1Y) BEE X R FRIE (4)

B RE : (A2)

() ZEFESEER  RPBEARIRST
B —FERFENRFE - BARE

BREE BERRENORINE X
BNREEEEQATERS -

e — KB & N RFIE

2007 2006
—2TtHF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

19,311 -

ZEFESERAT 28 BAREX
EE -EFRAREN—KBERRFA
MkEEEEAFERS -

FIEEERE
ZEFEAEEAFEFABENSHE
EARORZEHBER BEETRE
SNETRAFESMEMRBENTRFES
B RZIEZNF—A+ZHEH-

BIRFRITFRRRITESR
BRI ERERMR FRITHFER
NIEAEAEEMERHEITEENE
R BHIERBDEE - ERBHERIZ
BEEMENF279EE414E (- EZE
NE22FBFEIE)FE - WKKREER
EBEBITERERRER -

RITHESBANZZERENERNT0.72E R
081E(ZZZTRF  0.72EZE2.5E) 5t
é‘o
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31.

32.

94

B ERRMEE

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the

balance sheet date, based on payment due date, is as
follows:

0 to 90 days 0&90H

91 to 180 days 912180H
181 to 365 days 181£2365H
Over 365 days #8iA365H

Trade and bills payables of approximately RMB6,877,000
(2006: RMB34,861,000) are denominated in US dollars,
which is different from the functional currency of the
relevant group entity.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings RITIEK
- secured - BEH
- unsecured T

Bank borrowings of approximately RMB225,840,000
(2006: RMB285,900,000) bear interest at fixed rates
ranging from 4.185% to 8.217% (2006: 4.05% to
7.61%) per annum and the remaining RMB Nil (2006:
RMB5,670,000) bears interest at 0.5% per annum over
the US Prime Rate. The amounts are repayable within one
year and are therefore classified as current liabilities.

31.

32.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

BNEZRAKRERE

E/\\%;E:Elﬁi@lﬁﬁﬁ HEPHENES
BRAREERRSITOT ¢

2007 2006

—EELF —EERRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

26,305 207,967

13,736 1,767

11,841 6,222

18,625 13,204

70,507 229,160

BE Y AR 6,877,000t Z T ZE X
F . ANR#34,861,00070) W ENE 5 R
,Ty\&my“wuéézﬁuﬁ BRIRABESE

EEENINEEHR

/

RITEHE
2007 2006
—EELHF TERRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
53,750 85,874
172,090 205,696
225,840 291,570

BE Y A REK225840,000L( — 2 F
NE - AR#285,000,0007T) B R 1T
EiZEEF M EN T4.185F £8.217[F
(ZZEERF405EE761E) 715
BREARBZTL(ZZEZERF: AR
5,670,0007T) & 3 Bl {8 B 7 E )N F £.0.5
EftB - ZEZERBER —FRNERE &
/\*Et_'rmuiﬂﬁ{ﬁ °©
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32. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

32. WITEEM#HE)

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currency AREBUEABEBR TR EBUIG
other than the functional currency of the relevant group EEAENEENT

entities are set out below:

At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

33. DEFERRED REVENUE

At 1 January
Transfer to consolidated
income statement (note 7)

At 31 December

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liability
Non-current liability

Denominated
in US dollars
NETEHE
RMB’000
equivalent

ARET TEE
R-ZEZELtHF+=-A=+—H 6,591

RZBEERF+_A=1+—H 34,798

2007 2006
—¥FLE  ~TIA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTR  ARMTR

w—A—H 6,866 7,523
EEEEA SR

(P 5E7) (1,656) (657)
Rt+=-—A=+—H 5,210 6,366

ViEJR=RE 657 1,657

IERBEE 4,553 5,209
5,210 6,866
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

33. DEFERRED REVENUE (continued) 33, B ()

Notes: BfEr

(a) Government grants for research project (a) AEMEEINBFEDS
In 2005, the Group received government grants of — ST RHRE AEBESETFRE
RMB1,000,000, which were designated for a research —EWEEENRFEES ARE
project. The research project completed in late 2006. 1,000,0007C ° 2B AR T 4F
The verification report was assessed and approved by FEZK - IR _ES+EE=Ht
government in year 2007. Thus, the government grants LR o FI o ZHFEBSRA
were recognised as income for the year. FEEZAEWA o

(b) Government grants for purchase of the existing premises (b) EE SR EYEREESEHOEEG
and equipment for production B
In 2003 and 2004, the Group received government N-TEE=FER-—_EENE  AEH
grants of RMB5,600,000 and RMB2,323,000, which EESRIETERENRERERE KE
were designated for the cost of acquisition of the PETHESBORFEDES ARE
existing factory premises and certain equipment for 5,600,0007T & A R #2 323,0007 °
production respectively. The grants were deferred and ZEBPSHOETLER  BUES
will be recognised as income on a straight-line basis over EREBAENES O FEREESERDR
the expected useful lives of the related assets. During BUA ER AEBDZHR®ES
the year, the Group recognised government grants of BESHFESES AREE191,0007T
RMB191,000 and RMB465,000 as income respectively & AR 465,000 TR AU A o

for the relevant assets.

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
(a)  Share capital (a) RE=R

Number of shares  Share capital

B 2 E LA
'000 RMB’000

Th ARETTT

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 20086, RZEE; \i A—A8 -
31 December 2006 —EEXFt+A=+—HK
and 31 December 2007 —EE+FE+-A=+—H 500,000 500,000
Domestic shares (note i) WER (D 370,000 370,000
H shares (note ii) HAZ (B aEi) 130,000 130,000
500,000 500,000
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(a) Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 2003
issued by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission, all the shares of the Company, which
were issued and fully paid, being 37,000,000
ordinary shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each, were sub-divided into 370,000,000 ordinary
shares with a par value of RMB0.10 each.

On 14 November 2003, the Company
commenced the trading of the newly issued
130,000,000 H shares of RMBO0.10 each on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, including
117,000,000 H shares to institutional investors by
way of placement and 13,000,000 H shares for
subscription by members of the public in Hong
Kong under the Public Offer at the Offer Price of
HKDO0.50 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.535)
per share, for a total cash consideration of
HKD65,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share
capital and capital reserve of the Company
increased by approximately HKD12,150,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,000,000)
and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB56,550,000) respectively.

34. BA(#)

for the year ended 31 December 2007

HE_ET+FEF_A=1—HIFE

(a) MRA(£E)

GEE

i)

BREFREHEBEEZES
R-ZZEZT=FXANBEHD
X KRARFAEBEITRA
2 % 13 ( B137,000,000 % & i%
E A R #1.007T 89 & & i)
# 48 A370,000,000% & §& @
BEARB0A0TTH TR -

RZZTE=F+—A+1mA -
AN A) B B R B AP Bl E R
B & 130,000,000% #7 % 11 &
BEEARE010TTHHE
H & 8 117,000,000 8% H%
UREHAREE FRERE
# 13,000,000 H% 1R #&
PHBEEREEEIREN
0.507C (HIHEE M AR #0.535
ﬁ) ﬁ%;‘%ﬁ%/\i%iu
65,000,0007E( HHEERAR
#69,550,0007T) ° B 77 1% -

NAIH R A R E R EED B
#4049 7% #12,150,0007T ( £
& » A R #13,000,0007T)
Ko 7% #52,850,0007T ( £ 18 &
H AR #56,550,0007T) °
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(0)

98

Capital management

The Group’s equity capital management objectives
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to provide an adequate return
to shareholders commensurately with the level of
risk. To meet these objectives, the Group manages
the equity capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
by paying dividends to shareholders, issuing new
equity shares, and raising or repaying debts as
appropriate.

The Group’s equity capital management strategy,
which was unchanged from the previous periods,
was to maintain a reasonable proportion in total
debts and equity capital. The Group monitors
equity capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
capital ratio, which is calculated as net debts
over equity capital. Net debts is calculated as
total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Equity
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e.
share capital, accumulated losses and reserves).
The debt-to-equity capital ratios at 31 December
2007 and at 31 December 2006 were as follows:

Total debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(Ees st

Net debts B 58
Total equity B

Debt-to-equity capital ratio

R s IR AN L

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

A (%)

(b)

o Re MRS FEER

EXREE
AEBEREZRANER T
REAEEEBFBELENL
5 I B L B K ST A R R AR it
THER REBBFREF K
SERNEREERE  BAREE
B ) A RO A5 AR B, ~ AT HT AR D
RIEREEER  AERE#ER
PRAZRE R B AR

ERBREAEER A ERFREE
LB Mt RN BT R &
WIRTE  AEBIREEEES
BRAL & (AEBFERAER
BAGTE) ERERRAE - B F
BOREBERBRAREERS
EEBEEFE EmRAEAME
BmEE(ARAEA . BBER
HE AR - RZZEZELF+=
A=+—HBE-_ZZXF+ A
—+t—HRNEBEERRAL X
NN

AEEBMBERBRANEERE IS
AN
=

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
629,789 600,822
(106,105) (121,458)
523,684 479,364
1,371) 187,540
(381.97) 2.56
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

According to the share transfer agreement signed
between the Company and two third parties,
the Company transferred 24% equity interest of
the registered capital in Bolang to the two third
parties at a total consideration of RMB720,000
with effective date from 1 January 2007. After the
transferring of equity interest, Bolang became an
associate of the Company.

Bolang is principally engaged in manufacture and
sale of small electrical applicances and the assets
and liabilities arising from the disposal are as

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

HEM B F

(a)

follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amount due from a minority shareholder

Income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Short-term bank loans
Minority interests

Net liabilities disposed
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Total purchase consideration

Net cash outflow arising from disposal:

Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents
in a subsidiary disposed

Net cash outflow on disposal
of a subsidiary

BEARAEMEZE = FEFH
RHmHEZERE FXRRNBRE
AR¥720,000t MM % E =i
B R BARE M E AN R Y24 9% % A
mw BEEEF-A—HEHE
e B AEEEZ  ORBAKA
RATHBE QT -

MEAE B F/ DA E SR BE NI
E MEEMEENEERAE
LI

RMB’000
AREEF T
M - BEREE 2,222
rE 5,468
JEWE B AR 778
HETRBEER - Ze Rk
TERTRIE 894
FEU LB SR E IR 351
AU e FTIS R 64
ReRBEeEEIER 1,342
BB 2 RN (7,462)
HEeRNERERRESTER (1,668)
RHESRITE R (4,000)
DERR R R (49)
It ENaEFE (2,060)
HE—RHT B A e 2,780
BERERR 720
HEMEERRSRLFE -
BURESRE 720
Frit &M B ARIME S
MEeEEIAEE (1,342)
HENB QRN
RERHFE (622)
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(0)

100

Fang at a total consideration of HK$1.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

35. HEMEBRR &)
According to the stamped Sold and Bought Note (b)
signed between Ms. Liao Xiao Fang and A Tech
Technology (HK) Limited (a subsidiary of the
Company, “A-Tech”) on 18 June 2007, A-Tech
disposed of its entire 51% equity interest in E-Sync
International Limited (“E-Sync”) to Ms. Liao Xiao

E-Sync is principally engaged in sale of controller
systems for mobile phones and the assets and
liabilities arising from the disposal are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and bill receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other payable and accruals

Net liabilities disposed
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Total purchase consideration
Cash and cash equivalents
in a subsidiary disposed

Net cash outflow on disposal
of a subsidiary

ME - BER&RE
FE
FEYE B AL RIE
ReMReFEER
HERMNERMESFER

PrhEM B EFRE
HE—KMBAFWE

BEREARE
FTHENBARNES K
ReFEEAR

HEMBARNRE
Pipfaspees

BAEE/NF L+ 8BARRQ G KB
AR BEE(ESE BRA
AR R £F XA
+TNBIYHNEE S XK
Iz & LA 48 K& B 1o m B2
FRETHEERIEAMEERAER
A A lZE]) & 2 ZB51% AR &

FITIRN

g\o

-

Bk

Iz EBEERE B A H 25
RgHE MOEMEENEE
REBEWMT

RMB’000
ARBETT

1,843
723
40
(5,744)

(3,135)
3,135
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

On 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into
the guarantee contracts of RMB79,000,000 and
USD5,000,000 with banks to provide guarantee to
secure the bank facilities granted to third parties.

On 12 March 2007, the Company was involved in
a litigation as an defendant in which the plaintiff
claimed the Company to compensate the loss
of approximately RMB1.99 million (the “Alleged
Amount”) which was due to the tortuous products
quality sold by the Company. The Alleged Amount
has not been recorded in the books of the Group
as liabilities, as the directors of the Company are
of the opinion, with the advice from a legal adviser,
that the Group has no legal obligation to pay the
Alleged Amount.

On 30 March 2006, the Company involved in a
litigation as an defendant in which the plaintiff
claimed the Company to repay the principal
outstanding balance of USD518,000 together
with overdue interest expenses therein relating to
purchase from the plaintiff. The claimed balance
has not been recorded in the books of the Group
as liabilities, as the directors of the Company are
of the opinion, with the advice from a legal adviser,
that the Group has no legal obligation to pay the
claimed amount.

On 17 May 2007, the Company involved in a
mediation as the second proposee together with
a third party as the first proposee. The proposer
asked the first proposee to refund the principal
amount of RMB4,672,000 which was paid by the
proposer on behalf, together with the overdue
interest expenses therein and other interrelated
expenses, and the Company to bear the related
responsibility. As up to the date of report was
signed, the mediation is still pending. The claimed
palance has not been recorded in the books of the
Group as liabilities.

g

=}

®

RET

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

i

i

R-_ZEELEFE+_A=+—8"
REBERTT LMD ARE
79,000,0007T %5,000,0003 T HY
BREDH UWABKTE=HHIR
TEEREER-

R-ZZEE+F=A+=-H AR
AN A —RFLREEA - BF
ABEBARAIAMELNERE
= /REMAER AR 1,990,000
THEAFE(ERESE] &
2EFREEMBERE  ARQFE
ERE AEBUEELIZEEX
HiEEemE Al EB2BEY
ENAEERERARARE -

RZEEXRFE=ZA=1+H" AR
AN A —RFLREEA - BF
AEBA QB AR AR FA B
i EEKRENKD FES518,000
EnERBBEANERAL - &2

FEBEMERE ARAEER
B AEBTELEEETXNZ
HEAEH Bt ZRREHBT
ENAEERERPARARE -

R-ZEZTLFRA+TLER AR
ARA—TAFEHE_HRESR
A M—BE=ZFABEHES
Ao REAEKREHIREREAEE
RBEARBIMNOEASBARK
4,672,000t 3 7 8 HA %) B 2 &
ETHEBERS  WERAQ AKX
EEBHET #H=AxEEEB
B hERAEDESFHT & H
REHTENASEERE P AR
BAME-
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36.
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PR R R AL

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(e) Pursuant to the agreement in connection with the
very substantial disposal transaction as detailed
in note 2(b)(v), the Company has obligation to
deliver to the Property before a pre-agreed date.
The failure to honour this commitment will trigger a
daily compensation of 0.005% on the basis of total
consideration and the percentage will be double
if overdue for more than one month (the “Alleged
Penalty”). However, the Company failed to deliver
the possession. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion, with the advice from a legal
adviser, that the aforesaid agreement may not be
enforceable on the ground that the Company had
breached the GEM Listing Rules and accordingly
the Alleged Penalty has not been accrued as at 31
December 2007.

() Potential contingent liabilities arising/notified to the
Group after the year end are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion, with the
advice from a legal adviser, there is no other significant
lawsuits in which the Company or the Group acts as
defendant incurred except that set out above up to the
report date. Save as disclosed above, the directors were
not aware of any significant contingent liabilities of the
Group as at the balance sheet date.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

HAEE ()

(e)

RAZ A BT s 2(0)(v) FraF 9 3E %
EALESFTEN R AKEH
BEERE LB EDN B BT Z
ME - REBTHAEBERS
B 78 32 5 #8 X (B 0.005% 1) # 18 -
MZBED L EBRRES—[#ARK
e meE(EEER) - Rl
ARARAREXNERBEEE-
K2EZXrRERBERE A2 A
EERR ARARRERAIZE
RETRA - LA
BEIMIT Bt R-FTLHF
TZA=t+—BYXAREIERERE

e
N

FREEL/NEEHENGHE
EHRBERRLGRE W HHREH
F42 -

K2ZLE2BHEEBR® ARAAES
RE HEARERH  REXHHEE

HN -

ARBEAEERERSETREKN

AR EA - R EXABEEEN - &
EVTHNEBAEEREERBEMERXN
HARBIE -
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

OPERATING LEASES 37. KREHEY
The Group as lessee AEBEERAEEA
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in FARBERAZTYERLESHAOD TN
respect of office premises during the year amounted to KHE4 A AR®E643,000T( — T ZE X
RMB643,000 (2006: RMB840,000). F : AR%840,0007T) °
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by SN ERNEBGRES THAE
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are MERBNNES BN THE AN
negotiated for a term of two years. E o
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments RNEER AEERE T BEHINED
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TR REKEEHAONEH B RIEHRES AE
operating leases which fall due as follows: T
2007 2006
—EELF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Within one year —FR 715 573
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLF (BREEEME) 968 57
1,683 630
The Group as lessor AEBESLAA

Rental income earned under operating leases by the
Group during the year in respect of office premises and
machinery were RMB Nil (2006: RMB102,000) and RMB
Nil (2006: RMB78,000), net of negligible outgoings,
respectively. At 31 December 2007, the Group had not
contracted with tenants for any future minimum lease
payments.

FR AEEREBELEROBRBLAEY
EMBEESRBRINESWMAARESZ T
(Z2EERF : AR¥102,00070) X AR
BT (ZZZTRF : AR¥78,0007T)
(MBxLzEEAL) RZZEZELF+_A
=+—8 AEETERTMNBEERE
HeHBBFETAEEREGH -
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

38.

39.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Commitments in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment
— contracted for but not provided
— authorised but not contracted for

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

38. EBERKIE

As at 31 December 2007, certain assets of the Group
were pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group, as follows:

(@)

104

legal charges over certain of the Group’s
buildings with an aggregate net book value of
RMB20,413,000 (2006: RMB21,174,000) (note 15);

legal charges over certain of the Group’s prepaid
lease payments in respect of medium-term
leasehold land with an aggregate net book value of
RMB15,757,000 (2006: RMB34,920,000) (note 16);

pledge of held-for-trading investments of the Group
of RMB475,000 (2006: RMB505,000) (note 29);
and

pledge of certain bank deposits of the Group of
RMB96,171,000 (2006: RMB101,479,000) (note
30).

2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
WM - BE X
B SE
— BRI AMEREE 17,337 39,296
—EBREBERFTL - 178
17,337 39,474
39. EEEH

R-ZBZE+EFE+_A=+—08  KX&£H
BTHETEERTE EALAEEFTE

FERER

(a) AEBERETERFESAHEAR
#20,413,0007C (ZZEZRF + A
R#21,174,00070) WIEF{EETE
A (HsE15)

b) AEBRETEAFESAEAR
#15,757,0007L (ZZZTRF + A
R #34,920,0007T) WA EIFEE +
o EY TR A AR &SRB E B IR (&
16) :

) AEBFEBEEEREARE
475,000C (ZZEZ R F - /\Eﬁ%
505,0007t) M (BiFE29)

d ZAEBATFRITGERARE
96,171,000 ( — & & X 4
101,479,0007T) &) & # ( M &
30)
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
Group is required to make monthly contributions to the
defined contribution retirement scheme calculated at 20%
of the basic salaries of the employees, and employees
are required to contribute 8% of their basic salaries to
the retirement scheme. The Group has no obligations
for further pension payments or any post retirement
benefits beyond these contributions. The retirement
benefits are paid directly from the scheme assets to the
retired employees and are calculated by reference to
their monthly basic salaries at the date of retirement and
length of periods of services rendered. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

For the Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong, it operates
a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the subsidiary
in an independently administered fund. The employer
contributions from the subsidiary vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The total cost charged to income statement of
approximately RMB1,027,000 (2006: RMB650,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period.

40.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

R k4@ K5t &
AEEETEELENHBARNEESY
A2EMTTRNEEN DT RERS
el ARBABAREEELNFHFEN
20% A E B FURKGT IR MEE
AR EE AR H & 8% M R K& &
e BRI TN AERE A E BT
—FXNERREREMBRERF - &
KEHNEEBFTIEENTRARES
ERATRERE BNERAHERS
FEFME - HFRBRBEF REAREEE
MAEN R B45RA Rk -

RAEENTEMBE LR - HRERG
MR IEIRAER2MNEH T
~EeFE((BERTE)) WEER
VEBERBREEE - HASHERIE
EMEAFENETAILAE IR
RERESFEREMEBRERM
fre RTESAEIMEERZMBE AN
BENHREE BHBLEEESERE-
ZMBEARMREEIHINABESFE
HAEEHEREREME -

Al EXRNBRMBREALNAEARE
1,027,000 ( ZFEZE XNF: AR
650,0007T) ' B A B R A kA
MZEEELE AR -
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106

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Apart from the information as disclosed in notes
24 to 28 the financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with its related

companies during the year:

Yidong-Solar, an associate
Sales of goods
Service income received

Bolang, an associate
Rental income
Electricity income

LB, a related company
Sales of goods

FYIZEZE, a related company
Sales of goods

RN AN

ﬁ%g“ﬁ ]

= E20n

41.

E U ARTEHA

Compensation of key management personnel.
The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total remuneration

SRR
REERER

B #8588

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

BEALRS
(a) B B 75 3R R MO 5T 24 =28 FT 52 1Y
BRI REBEBEERERER
FREUTERR S
2007 2006
—EELF TERRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBFIT
- 13,262
- 42
169 -
66 -
16,197 -
7,900 -
b) FEEBEABMS
FRAEERETTZEEASM
W
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREETF T
1,309 2,775
12 23
1,321 2,798

EEhRITETBRAEME 2 E
BRIALTHITIERRETIHES
& E
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Guarantee

(i)

At 31 December 2007, guarantees given by
related parties for bank borrowings are as
follows:

China Ruilian Fh [ I B

At 31 December 2007, guarantees given to
banks for bank facilities granted to related
parties are as follows:

Bolang R EA
Note:
Guarantees for bank borrowings of RMB20,000,000

has been subsequently released when the bank
borrowings was repaid on 23 January 2008.

41.

for the year ended 31 December 2007

HE_ET+FEF_A=1—HIFE

BEANLTRS (&)

(c) HER
(i)

—ET L E+ = F
+—B RRAEEH
B ATIRENERDT :

%

2007 2006
—FFLE  —TIA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

268,000 346,000

(if)

R-TTL#+ - A
=+—B8  ptEEALF
ERRITEEMRITRME
FIERDT

2007 2006
—2ELE —ERERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

35,000 -

B st

# A B #20,000,0007¢ 88 77 B #) 78 1% 1 3%
ROBRE-FTENE-A-t=AEER

FERRRR -
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42.

108

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(@)

According to the application for deregistration of a
defunct private company, the notice of no objection
to a company being deregistered issued by
Inland Revenue Department and the notice issued
by Company Registry dated 11 January 2008,
pursuant to Section 291AA(9) of the Companies
Ordinance, by notice published on 11 January
2008 under Gazette Notice No. 156, Yidong-Sola,
an associate of A Tech has been deregistered,
Yidong Sola was accordingly dissolved as from the
date of publication of the said Gazette Notice.

Litigation

Subsequent to 31 December 2007, the Company
has received numerous claims from various parties,
most being suppliers, totalling approximately
RMB4,000,000, being the total amount of
outstanding principal of goods supplied and
interest accrued thereon. Up to the date of this
report, the court has made judgement that the
Company has the obligation to repay approximately
RMB1,900,000, and the remaining balance of
approximately RMB2,100,000 has not been judged
by the court.

e

i

a)

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

EHEHREE

ER—IBERHE -—RTEELA
AREMA R - IR
MO ARBEEATREBME
MBI EMERERRIKLE
201AAQEKIE R A S ZENF
— BT —H®NEHRREF1565
FlEmmEmeE IR E QG
lZERBRAEBEEM At 15
HRAALNERASHHED
R AR o

HiA
—EEEF+-A=+—H#%E"
ARABBTIBEBAL(KE D AH
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43.

AR R R AL

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

A-Tech Technology
(HK) Limited

ZRBHR ()
BRAF

Denuo

.
(o

Ningbo Hi-Tech
Park Yitian
Company Limited

ERTRREREZX
HRARDE

Ningbo Million Bank
Electronic Technical
Company Limited

EREEEFRE
BRAA

Ningbo Yitai Electronic
Company Limited
ERRETERAT

Class of
shares held

R aHER

Ordinary
Tmk

Contributed
capital

BAIRA

Contributed
capital

BAIRA

Contributed
capital

BAIRA

Contributed
capital

BAIRA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation/
establishment
SMEL R
R&E/
ARk

Hong Kong

&8

PRC
i

PRC
F

PRC
F

PRC
F

43.

Nominal

value of paid
up issued/
registered/
ordinary capital
BHERT/
i/
EERAEE

HKD2
BH2T

RMB2,000,000
AR H2,000,0007C

RMB1,500,000
AR#1,500,0007C

USD10,000,000
10,000,000% T

RMB15,000,000
AR #15,000,0007T

for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-—A=+—HILFE

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
TN EGRE
Directly  Indirectly
Ei m#&
% %
100% -
66.7% -
51% -
51% 49%
51% -

RABIME D RFHE

Principal activities

TEEH

Sale of controller
systems for mobile

phones
MBEFEARRRHE

Design, research and
development of
mobile phones
MBEFERA  PRERE

Inactive

LEXH

Inactive

LEXH

Research and
development and
production of
controller systems
for display devices

BTRBERHIRZS
MrEEE R EE
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43.
COMPANY (continued)

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of paid
registration up issued/
Class of and operation/ registered/
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment  ordinary capital
HMAL/ R BHERT/
REE/ it/
WEAR AR FrisRBER B EERAEE
Shanghai E-Source Contributed PRC RMB10,000,000
Telecommunication capital H AR10,000,0007T
Company Limited EHRAK
LR RERRE
BRAT
Shenzhen E-Source Contributed PRC RMB5,000,000
Communications capital H ARH5,000,0007
Technology Co., Ltd. ~ BHRA
Shenzhen Ossay Contributed PRC RMB714,200
Technology caplital H ARHET714,2007C
Company Limited ERAK
(“Shenzhen Ossay”)
Notes:
(a) The total equity interest in Shenzhen Ossay was increased

from 30% to 62.90% after the Company acquired
additional 32.90% equity interest of Shenzhen Ossay
in June 2005 from a third party. Accordingly, Shenzhen
Ossay was changed as from an associate to a subsidiary
of the Company in the year 2005.

(b) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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for the year ended 31 December 2007
BE—FTLF+-A=+—HILFE

ADFM B ARE (@)

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company Principal activities

FAFRIERE TEXRK

Directly  Indirectly
EE M
% %

97.3% - Research and
development of
controller systems
for telecommunications

BHRBEHSEZAS
ek
65% - Inactive
LEENG
62.90% - Research and
(note a) development of
(Ffizka) controller systems
for audio and video
products
YEEMEHIRERSR
ek
Bt E

ARRRZ_ZETRFEANABE=ZFE
SN B Shenzhen Ossay 32.90% & 7Zx
1% - NQ A Shenzhen OssayHy
IR AN 1 25 R 30% 32 £62.90% ° E It
Shenzhen Ossay® —ZZRHFEMH AR
AlE A ATIEAME AR -

B U8 X B RY AR SRR N E AT I R L
BEEMAEEEFES °



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

IRERRE

RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling an distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of losses of associates
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit
Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

W
HERA

==l

ABHA
HERDHAAR
TBREX
BEMKA
EEBERAER
HEMBA RS

BHSHATEN,/
(B#&)
FiEh (%) /%

EREr]/ (B8)

o
ARAREHEA
DUBRES

o

FREA/ (B1)

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 | =2 Zt £ 5 &
E 35
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-ALEE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
“ET=F FEIMF STTRF “FEAF CBBEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARETT  ARBTE  ARETT  ARMTR
315,954 494,123 446,182 317,274 362,378
(229,158) (389,494) (400,598) (274,311) (327,057)
86,796 104,629 45,584 42,963 35,321
5,781 19,314 30,296 10,049 6,186
(1,529) (4,280) (4,402) (5,625) (4,850)
(16,210) (32,747) (44,481) (56,895) (179,139)
(3,585) (4,567) (10,786) (17,638) (31,862)

- (33) (128) - -

- - - - 5,915

71,253 82,316 16,083 (27,1406) (168,429)
(24,032) (27,176) (12,032) 3,901 (23,155)
47,221 55,140 4,051 (23,245) (191,584)
47,117 56,317 7,241 (21,087) (190,476)
104 (1,177) (3,190) (2,158) (1,108)

47,221 55,140 4,051 (23,245)

(191,584)
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MBERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

EE BERER

At 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—ET=F —ZENE —ETRF “EERF —EEtE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETTL ARETTT ARETTT ARETR
(restated)
(E5)
Total assets BEBE 404,506 452,758 691,400 795,228 633,628
Total liabilities BEEE (240,253) (238,934) (480,885) (607,688) (634,999)
164,253 213,824 210,515 187,540 (1,371)
Equity attributable to equity ARERRAE

holders of the Company BAEAEGES 158,514 205,571 203,652 184,140 (3,614)
Minority interests DB R ER 5,739 8,253 6,863 3,400 2,243

164,253 213,824 210,515 187,540

Certain amounts for the year 2004 have been restated to reflect
the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs.
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